
Planning Policy Working Group

Date: Tuesday, 20th November, 2018
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor H Rolfe
Members: Councillors S Barker, P Davies, A Dean, S Harris, P Lees, J Lodge, 

J Loughlin, E Oliver and V Ranger

Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 2pm on the day before the meeting.

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 5 - 10

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting.

3 Garden Community Strategic Growth Development Plan 
Documents

11 - 16

To consider the Garden Community Strategic Growth Development 
Plan Documents.

4 Local Plan Statement of Community Involvement 17 - 46

Public Document Pack



To consider the Local Plan Statement of Community Involvement.

5 Review of Regulation 19 Sustainability Appraisal 47 - 92

To consider the review of the Regulation 19 Sustainability Appraisal.

6 Any Other Item Which the Chairman Considers to be Urgent

To consider any items which the Chairman considers to be urgent.



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Agendas, reports and minutes for this meeting can be viewed on the Council’s 
website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in relation to this meeting 
please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510369/433.

Members of the public who have registered to do so are permitted to speak at this 
meeting, to a maximum number of five speakers in relation to each main agenda 
item.  A maximum of 3 minutes is permitted for members of the public to speak. You 
will need to register with the Democratic Services Officer by 2pm on the day before 
the meeting.  Late requests to speak may not be allowed.  You may only speak on 
the item indicated.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.  If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a 
signer available at a meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 
01799 510369 as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/




PLANNING POLICY WORKING GROUP held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on 
THURSDAY, 4 OCTOBER 2018 at 7.30 pm

Present: Councillor H Rolfe (Chairman)
Councillors S Barker, P Lees, E Oliver and V Ranger

Officers in 
attendance:

P Bylo (Planning Policy Manager), R Dobson (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager), G Glenday (Assistant Director - 
Planning), R Harborough (Director - Public Services) and 
S Miles (Planning Policy Team Leader)

PP21  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Davies, Dean, Harris, 
Lodge and Loughlin.  

Councillor Barker declared a personal interest in relation to all items on the 
agenda as the County Council member for Dunmow.  

Public Speaking

Neil Gregory made a statement, a summary of which is appended to these 
minutes.

In response to Mr Gregory, the Chairman said points he had raised would be 
addressed later in the meeting when the reports were considered.  He said costs 
for the Local Plan were similar to those of other Local Plan authorities.  The 
money had been spent to enable the Council to carry out the work.  He had 
raised with the Secretary of State the issue of the significant costs burden for the 
authority.

The Chairman asked the Planning Policy Team Leader to explain the position 
around the new household projections.  

The Planning Policy Team leader apologised for the publication of the papers on 
Monday, and explained that this was to coincide with publication of papers for 
Full Council.  He said representations would be welcomed on the focussed 
changes and on other parts of the plan where representations arose from new 
information contained in the addendum, or newly published evidence base.

PP22  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the previous meeting were received and signed by the Chairman 
as an accurate record of the meeting.  

PP23  HOUSING SUPPLY AND 5-YEAR SUPPLY STATEMENT 2018 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Members considered a report on the Housing Supply and 5-Year Supply 
Statement 2018.   The report set out the Housing Trajectory and 5-Year land 
supply statement 2018, and concluded that the Council could not demonstrate a 
5 year supply of housing.  

The Planning Policy Team Leader highlighted the main points of the report.  He 
drew attention to the exceptional number of residential completions in the year 
April 2017 to March 2018.  In this year there were 966 residential completions, 
which was a third higher than last year, which itself was previously the highest 
ever number of completions in the District.  This brought the total number of 
homes built between 2011 and 2018 to 4,156.  It was estimated that at least 
2,496 more would be built over the next 5 years.  Those completions and 
commitments had fed into the Council’s trajectory and 5-year supply calculation.  

The Planning Policy Team Leader said a further new input into the calculations 
was the new government standardised methodology for calculating housing 
need, which linked to the new household projections that were released on 20 
September 2018.  Further detail on the new household projections and how they 
related to the Local Plan would be explained in the introduction into the next 
report on the agenda.

The Planning Policy Team Leader said the calculation of need using the 
standardised methodology indicated a need of 633 homes a year (or 13,922 over 
22 years).  When comparing this need with the supply, officers identified a 5 year 
supply of 3.46 years if new allocations from the draft plan were excluded; or 4.45 
years if new allocations form the draft plan were included.  Table 5 in the report 
showed these figures, however, it should be noted that there was an error in the 
two paragraphs preceding the table, in that at paragraphs 17 and 18, the figures 
referred to should reflect those in Table 5.

The Planning Policy Team Leader said the impact on the update in supply was 
that for the purposes of the Local Plan, 5.1 years of supply could be identified, 
and that the difference was primarily to the ‘stepped trajectory’ contained in the 
Local Plan.  This methodology needed to be tested through the Local Plan and 
could not be used for the purposes of development management.

The Chairman invited questions from Members at this point.  There were no 
questions.  He then asked the Planning Policy Team Leader to explain the 
impact on the Local Plan of the updated projections.   
 
The Planning Policy Team Leader explained the potential impact of the new 
household projections on the Local Plan.  On 20 September the Office for 
National Statistics had released new household projections, which for Uttlesford 
indicated lower household growth of 10,070 from 2011 to 2033.  These 
projections compared with household projections of 11,430 in the previous data 
set.  The figure was therefore around 1,400 lower.  The Planning Policy Team 
Leader added that there was an error in the report at paragraph 13 on page 38 
of the document pack, as the figure of 11,733 should read 11,430.  

Page 6



The Planning Policy Team Leader explained the standardised methodology 
method of calculating the 10,070 household projections resulted in 
approximately the same figure of 14,000 homes, so if the Council were to submit 
the new Local Plan after 24 January if the household projections did not change, 
and if the Government’s methodology did not change, the Local Plan would 
include the same housing requirement. 

Councillor Rolfe said the calculations although complicated were robust, the 
figure of around 14,000 was the correct one and the Council would continue to 
work towards this figure.  He said the other main update in the report, that the 
Council did not have more than a 5.1 year land supply was a concern, so the 
sooner a Plan was submitted the better. He invited questions. 

Councillor Lees questioned the inclusion in the overall housing target of the 
accommodation within communal establishments.

The Planning Policy Team Leader explained that taking out the accommodation 
within communal establishments from the overall target would mean that such 
accommodation would need to be contained within a separate target, and have 
its own supply identified to meet that target.  

Councillor Lees said that if this had been done separately, then the figures could 
have been reduced by 500, which would have been better for housing supply.  

The Planning Policy Team Leader said this approach would mean that the 
Council would then be down by 500 care home places.  

Councillor Ranger said it would be irresponsible to juggle with mathematics to 
equate figures for care home spaces with those for homes.  

The Chairman said as a general point he was not aware of any Inspector who 
had suggested fewer houses.  It was also important to note that the Government 
was determined to achieve 300,000. 

The report was noted.  

PP24  ADDENDUM OF FOCUSSED CHANGES TO THE LOCAL PLAN REGULATION 
19 PRE-SUBMISSION DOCUMENT 

Members considered a report setting out further detail around an addendum of 
focussed changes to the Regulation 19 Local Plan. 
 
The Chairman invited the Planning Policy Team Leader to introduce the report.

The Planning Policy Team Leader said the report recommended an Addendum 
of Focused Changes to the Regulation 19 Local Plan.  The Addendum contained 
changes to the plan covering three different issues.  In summary the issues were 
the elevated level of risk around the delivery of West of Braintree Garden 
Community following the letters from the Inspector at the North Essex Authorities 
examination, and the measures the Council would take if there were delivery 

Page 7



issues around this site; the strategic policies for the purposes of Neighbourhood 
Planning; and further detail on the policy protection of European protected sites.

The Planning Policy Team Leader highlighted briefly the changes relating to 
West of Braintree.  He said officers recommended the plan should reflect an 
elevated level of risk around the delivery of this site, but were not recommending 
removing the site from the plan and allocating alternative sites in its place.  It 
was still considered a sustainable location for major development with a 
reasonable prospect of delivery on the site.

The Planning Policy Team Leader continued to speak to the report.  He said it 
was also recommended that if at a point in the future it became apparent West of 
Braintree was significantly delayed or was not deliverable, and that restricted the 
Council’s ability to meet its housing requirements, then an early review of the 
Local Plan should be taken.

At the request of the Chairman, the Director – Public Services gave an outline of 
the QC’s advice which the Council had obtained, and on which the focussed 
changes were based.

The Chairman said he was aware that Stebbing Parish Council representatives 
were present at this meeting, and that they had met with the Planning Policy 
Team Leader, and had found the explanation of Counsel’s advice on West of 
Braintree to be helpful.

The Planning Policy Team Leader said a paper had been tabled with an 
additional amendment to SP5, including reference to developers entering into a 
‘Quality and Collaboration Partnership’ if there was a privately led arrangement.

He said in addition to the Addendum of Focussed Changes the report also noted 
the publication of two updates to the evidence base.  The first was an update to 
the Spatial Strategy Background Paper, to build upon the document that had 
been published in June.  The second was a review of the employment policies in 
the Regulation 19 Local Plan.  The review of employment policies included a 
number of suggested amendments to the plan.  Officers were not recommending 
these changes were incorporated, as they did not go to the soundness of the 
plan and would dilute the focus of the document.

At the request of the Chairman, the Planning Policy Team Leader explained why 
it was not possible to incorporate the new household projections into an update 
of the SHMA and Local Plan and then submit on or before 24 January.  He 
explained that if the Council submitted after 24 January, the District’s housing 
requirement would either be the same as it is now, or it could potentially rise.  If 
the Council were to submit after 24 January it would be bound by the 
standardised methodology, which currently calculated to 13,900 homes in the 
district, practically the same requirement as the current requirement.  

Councillor Barker said in view of the Inspector’s letter, the contingency approach 
recommended was a pragmatic way forward.  The Council would be likely to 
have to accept that at least some modifications were necessary.  

Page 8



At the request of the Chairman, the Planning Policy Team Leader explained that 
the Spatial Strategy Background Paper pulled together the development of the 
Local Plan.  As such, it collated much existing evidence base in order to explain 
the strategy in the plan.  It therefore included historic information, where the 
situation had now moved on.  Regarding Mr Gregory’s reference to access to 
NUGC from Cow Lane, he suspected the inclusion of such historic information 
was the case here.

The Chairman said these were relatively small changes to reflect the developing 
situation at the North Essex Authorities examination.  He then read out the 
recommendation, which was duly carried as follows.

The Planning Policy Working Group is a working group, not a 
decision-making body.  A report to the full Council meeting on 9 
October 2018 has been published.  This includes a 
recommendation that the Addendum of Focussed Changes be 
published in accordance with the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  RESOLVED that 
officers report to full Council the comments of the Planning Policy 
Working Group as set out in the draft Minutes of this meeting.

The meeting ended at 8.15pm. 

Summary of Statement of Neil Gregory

Mr Gregory spoke in relation to the following points: 

- papers were only made available on Monday.  It is undemocratic to have 
only three days to read lengthy papers; 

- it is not clear whether West of Braintree is “on hold” or not; 
- it appears that the update of the Spatial Strategy Background Paper is not 

available for comment; it also contains errors, e.g. North Uttlesford 
Garden Community access from Cow Lane and good access for walking 
and cycling for North Uttlesford Garden Community; 

- changes to the Objectively Assessed Housing Need mean that this is a 
chance to pause and reflect, which would be prudent and democratic; 

- there has been considerable overspend on the Local Plan.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Planning Policy Working Group

Title: Garden Community Strategic Growth 
Development Plan Documents

Date:
20 November 2018

Report 
Author:

Stephen Miles, Planning Policy Team Leader, 
01799 510346

Summary

1. This paper is to update members on the timetable and process for the 
production of the Development Plan Documents (DPDs) to support the Garden 
Communities proposed in the draft Local Plan.

Recommendations

2. That Planning Policy Working Group notes the update on the DPDs.

Financial Implications

3. None – the production of the DPDs is covered by the Council’s budget.  
Furthermore, the Council is putting a bid in to join the Government’s Garden 
Community Programme.

Background Papers

4. None.

Impact 

5.       

Communication/Consultation The DPDs will be subject to public 
consultation.

Community Safety This will be an underlying theme of the 
DPDs

Equalities The DPDs will be subject to an equalities 
impact assessment.

Health and Safety Health and wellbeing of the community will 
be an important theme of the DPDs and will 
be considered as part of the sustainability 
appraisal/ strategic environmental 
assessment of the DPDs.

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

The DPDs need to comply with human 
rights and planning legislation. The 
regulatory framework is provided by the 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 (as amended) and related statutory 
instruments. Once adopted they will form 
part of the statutory development plan.

Sustainability This will be an underlying theme of the 
DPDs e.g. ensuring homes and jobs are 
provided near to each other and minimising 
reliance on the private car. The DPDs will 
be subject to sustainability appraisal/ 
strategic environmental assessment 
throughout its preparation.

Ward-specific impacts All, although some Wards will be impacted 
more than others.

Workforce/Workplace The DPDs will be key corporate documents 
and officers from across the council’s 
services will contribute to its preparation.

Situation

6. The draft Local Plan commits the Council to producing Strategic Growth 
Development Plan Documents for each of the Garden Communities.  These 
documents will set out further detail as to how the policy requirements in the 
Local Plan will be put into practice.

7. Members will recall that an issues and options consultation on the West of 
Braintree Garden Community DPD already took place over the winter of 
2017/18.  Work on the DPDs for Easton Park and North Uttlesford is just 
commencing.

8. Officers met with representatives from Grosvenor on 23 October to commence 
discussions on the DPD.  Officers proposed a list of policy areas that the DPD 
needs to address and Grosvenor has broadly accepted them.  Key issues 
such as the requirements for affordable housing and up front delivery of 
essential infrastructure will be fully addressed in the DPD.

9. Appendix 1 to this report sets out the initial thoughts around the policy areas 
the DPD could cover.  It should be noted that this is a working draft, however 
any comments members want to make on it at this stage are welcomed.

10. It was also agreed that, where appropriate, Grosvenor could make a financial 
contribution to the preparation of additional evidence that may be needed to 
support the DPD.  Officers welcomed this but it was stressed that the briefs for 
any such evidence would need to be agreed by the council, and the Council 
will retain the right to commission independent review of the work.  Grosvenor 
accepted this principle.

11.Officers will be arranging a similar meeting with Landsec in the coming weeks.

Page 12



12.The Council anticipates the high level process for North Uttlesford and Easton 
Park Garden Communities looking forward to be as follows:

a. Evidence gathering and establishment of Community Forum

b. Workshops and public engagement

c. Drafting the DPD

d. Formal regulation 18 consultation on the DPD – September 2019

e. Consider the representations and revise DPD as appropriate

f. Formal regulation 19 representation period on the DPD – June 2020

g. Submission of the DPD – September 2020

h. Examination of the DPD – December 2020

i. Adoption of the DPD – March 2021

13.The Council will encourage the promoters of the sites to work in parallel on the 
outline planning application for the site, although permission will not be 
granted until the DPD is adopted.  This will support delivery of these Garden 
Communities in line with the trajectory anticipated in the draft Local Plan, as 
well as enabling feedback from the workshops and formal consultation to feed 
into the planning applications.

14.The preparation of the DPDs will involve extensive community engagement, 
not only in relation to local councils and residents but also with key 
stakeholders, including the Clinical Commissioning Group, Essex County 
Council and Historic England.  It is suggested that a Community Forum is 
established for each Garden Community to secure this engagement and that 
the Master Developers are involved too.  The Forums also offer an opportunity 
to engage with ‘hard to reach’ groups such as younger people.  Innovative 
methods of participation (for instance using digital media) will be trialled with 
the objective of opening up a wider engagement. 

15.For the West of Braintree DPD the timing will be different given that the new 
community is being jointly planned with Braintree District Council and requires 
the resolution of a number of issues raised by the Planning Inspector for 
Braintree, Tendring and Colchester Local Plans.  A further issue is that there is 
no single Master Developer for this Garden Community and consideration is 
currently being given to North Essex Garden Community Company fulfilling 
this role.  It is therefore expected that the formal regulation 18 consultation for 
this DPD will take place in mid-2020, subject to the NEA examination 
timetable.  Furthermore, there is less of an emphasis on early delivery, with 
first homes anticipated on the Uttlesford side of the border in 2025/26, 
although the DPD will still need to be adopted before planning permission 
could be granted.  

Page 13



16.As previously stated an Issues and Options consultation has already taken 
place on the West of Braintree DPD.  Officers are yet to begin analysing these 
representations, and once the next phase of work on the DPD begins, this will 
be the first task.

17.The District Council and Essex County Council have made a bid for the 
Uttlesford Garden Communities to join the Government’s Garden Community 
Programme and a verbal update on this will be given at the meeting.  Should 
the bid be successful, this will support production of the DPDs and delivery of 
the Garden Communities.

Risk Analysis

18.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

Production on the 
DPD is delayed 
impacting on the 
Council’s ability to 
deliver to the 
trajectory in the 
Local Plan

3 – some risk, 
particularly if 
the Local Plan 
is delayed at 
examination

3 – delay in 
the delivery of 
the Garden 
Communities 
will weaken 
the Council’s 
position in 
defending 
against 
planning 
applications 
not in line with 
the Local Plan

The Garden 
Community 
Prospectus bid seeks 
funding to support a 
lead officer for each 
DPD to drive it 
forward and keep it on 
track

The Local Plan as 
a whole, or one or 
more of the 
Garden 
Communities in 
the Local Plan, 
is/are found 
unsound

2 – some risk, 
there are a 
significant 
challenges 
from a number 
of objectors

4 – any work 
on a Garden 
Community 
that was found 
unsound 
would be 
abortive

Officers will work to 
justify the proposals in 
the draft Local Plan at 
examination

The promotors of 
the Garden 
Communities do 
not financially 
support the DPD 
production

2 – some risk 3 – this would 
mean that the 
Council would 
need to fund 
the evidence 
base to 
support the 
DPDs

The Garden 
Community 
Prospectus bid seeks 
funding to support the 
DPD production.
Negotiations with the 
Garden Community 
promotors have 
indicated that they are 
willing to fund the 

Page 14



evidence base to 
support the DPDs.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 15



Appendix 1 – NUGC Policy Areas – First draft

Policy No. Policy Title / other title
1 Vision
2 Objectives
3 Development Principles
4 Implementing the DPD
5 Stewardship
6 Site and Setting
7 Housing Supply
8 Affordable Housing
9 Balanced and sustainable community 
10 Employment Uses
11 Employment Uses in Town and Local Centres
12 Broadband
13 Retail Uses (consider merging into policy 14)
14 Community Services and Facilities
15 Town and Local Centres
16 Sustainable Travel
17 Highway Infrastructure
18 Vehicular Access
19 High quality links to other locations
20 Public Transport provision
21 Cycling provision
22 Walking provision
23 Parking standards (?)
24 Open space and recreation
25 Heritage
26 Landscape
27 Strategic Landscaping
28 Climate Change & Sustainable Design & Construction
29 Surface Water Drainage
30 Foul drainage and sewage disposal
31 Construction processes
32 Phasing
33 Infrastructure provision
N/a Housing trajectory
N/a Employment trajectory (?)
N/a Monitoring Framework
N/a Proposals Map
N/a Concept Diagram
N/a Appendix: Car and Cycle Parking Standards
N/a Appendix: Open space and recreation standards
N/a Glossary
N/a Appendix: Relationship to Local Plan

Page 16



Committee: Planning Policy Working Group

Title: Local Plan Statement of Community 
Involvement

Date:
20 November 2018

Report 
Author:

Stephen Miles, Planning Policy Team Leader, 
346

Summary

1. This Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been updated in 
preparation for the submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary of State.

Recommendations

2. That Planning Policy Working Group considers the updated Statement of 
Community Involvement and recommends to Cabinet that the document is 
subject to a six week consultation from 7 January to 18 February.

Financial Implications

3. None.

Background Papers

4. Appendix 1 – Updated Statement of Community Involvement

Impact 

5.       

Communication/Consultation The SCI will be subject to a period of 
consultation.

Community Safety N/a

Equalities The SCI makes supports methods of 
consultation such that all groups can be 
involved in consultation processes.

Health and Safety N/a

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

N/a

Sustainability N/a

Ward-specific impacts All

Workforce/Workplace N/a

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



Situation

6. The Council adopted its SCI in January 2018, the document sets out the 
Council’s approach to public consultation and involvement in the preparation 
of the Local Plan, other development plan documents and in the determination 
of planning applications.

7. Officers have carried out a review and refresh of the document to support the 
Council’s submission of the Local Plan.  The views of the Planning Policy 
Working Group are sought prior to carrying out a formal consultation on the 
SCI.

8. The main changes to the SCI are to reflect the arrangements for publishing the 
Addendum to the Local Plan and the updated Sustainability Appraisal for a 
period of representations to be submitted.

9. Subject to the views of PPWG and Cabinet the consultation on the SCI is due 
to run for six weeks from 7 January to 18 February.

Risk Analysis

10.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

If the Council 
does not have an 
up to date SCI 
and has not 
carried out 
consultation in 
accordance with 
the Regulations 
and the 
Statement of 
Community 
Involvement the 
Local Plan could 
be found to have 
failed the legal 
compliance test at 
examination.

2 – Unlikely 4 – The 
Council could 
be required to 
undertake 
additional 
periods of 
consultation 
and resubmit 
the Plan 

The review of the SCI 
is intended to ensure 
the Local Plan is 
ready for submission

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 18



UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY
INVOLVEMENT

November 2018

Page 19



P 2/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Contents
GLOSSARY ...............................................................................................................3

1 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................5

2 WHAT’S IT ALL ABOUT?...................................................................................6

What is a statement of community involvement? ....................................................................6

Why is a statement of community required?............................................................................6

3 UTTLESFORD’S COMMUNITY ..........................................................................7

4 PRINCIPLES OF ENGAGEMENT.......................................................................8

5 PLAN MAKING....................................................................................................9

Planning policy documents........................................................................................................9

When can you get involved? ....................................................................................................11

How will you be kept informed of the development of planning policy documents?.........14

Key stakeholders and community groups..............................................................................15

Engagement methods on planning policy documents ..........................................................17

Feeding information into decisions.........................................................................................21

6 PLANNING APPLICATIONS ............................................................................22

The pre-application stage .........................................................................................................22

Application stage.......................................................................................................................22

Determining planning applications..........................................................................................25

Outside the planning application process ..............................................................................26

7 MONITORING AND REVIEW............................................................................27

8 CONTACT US ...................................................................................................27

Page 20



P 3/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Glossary
Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR) A report monitoring the effectiveness of the 
development plan.  Monitoring information will be published on the website as soon as 
practicable

Development Plan The development plan consist of the Development Plan Documents 
produced by Uttlesford District Council, (or jointly with neighbouring authorities), Essex 
County Council and any Neighbourhood Plan.  Planning applications must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

Development Plan Document (DPD) A document setting out Uttlesford District 
Council’s planning policies and proposals. DPDs are subject to community involvement, 
consultation and independent examination. 

Independent Examination Development Plan Documents are subject to an 
examination by a planning inspector to rigorously test legal compliance and overall 
‘soundness’.

Local Development Scheme (LDS) The LDS sets out the timetable for preparing the 
Local Plan. 

Local Plan The term used to describe various Development Plan Documents

Material Consideration A material consideration is any planning matter which is 
relevant to a particular case.

Minerals and waste development plan documents DPDs prepared by Essex County 
Council with regards to mineral extraction and waste management

Neighbourhood Planning A new tier of the planning system, introduced under the 
Localism Act 2011, to give communities more control over the future of their area.

Neighbourhood Plan A type of Neighbourhood Planning, which can establish general 
planning policies for the development and use of land in a defined neighbourhood area. 
A Neighbourhood Plan must be in general conformity with the Local Plan, undergo 
Examination and a Referendum. After adoption, they are part of the statutory 
development plan and are used (alongside other policy documents) to determine 
planning applications.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Sets out the Government’s planning 
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It provides guidance for 
local planning authorities and decision-takers, both in drawing up plans and making 
decisions about planning applications. It must be taken into account in the preparation 
of local and neighbourhood plans, and is a material consideration in planning decisions. 
Additional detail is given to the NPPF through Planning Practice Guidance which is 
the governments on-line, web based guidance on national planning policies.

Planning Inspectorate (PINS) The Planning Inspectorate holds independent 
examinations to determine whether or not DPDs are ‘sound’. The Planning Inspectorate 
also handles planning and enforcement appeals.

Page 21



P 4/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Section 106 Agreements A binding legal agreement requiring a developer or 
landowner to provide or contribute towards facilities, infrastructure or other measures, in 
order for planning permission to be granted. Planning obligations are normally secured 
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Sound/soundness This describes where a DPD is considered to ‘show good 
judgement’ and also to fulfil the expectations of legislation, as well as conforming to 
national policy.  A sound plan is 

o Positively prepared;
o Justified;
o Effective; and
o Consistent with national policy.

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) The SCI is a document explaining to the 
community how and when they can be involved in the preparation of the planning policy 
documents and the determination of planning applications, and the steps that will be 
taken to encourage this involvement.

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) An SEA is an iterative assessment of 
the environmental effects of policies and proposals contained in Local Plans.

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) SPDs do not have ‘development plan’ 
status, but are intended to elaborate upon the policies and proposals in DPDs. They 
can be used as a ‘material consideration’ in the determination of planning applications.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA) An SA is an assessment of the social, economic and 
environmental effects of policies and proposals within Local Development Documents.

Sustainable Development Development that is in accord with economic, social and 
environmental objectives.  Development that meets today’s needs without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 

Uttlesford Futures Uttlesford’s Local Strategic Partnership which is a collaboration of 
organisations including the district council, the county council, the local health service 
and the emergency services.  LSPs allow public bodies to work together on projects 
they wouldn't be able to do on their own. Uttlesford Futures' work is guided by the 
priorities that are set out in the district's Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-2018. 
www.uttlesford.gov.uk/uttlesfordfutures

Page 22

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/uttlesfordfutures


P 5/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

1 Introduction
1.1 The purpose of planning is to help achieve sustainable development, assisting 

economic, environmental and social progress for existing and future communities.  

Planning shapes the places where people live and work, so it is important that 

communities are able to take an active part in the process. Uttlesford District Council 

works to improve the quality of lives of people who live, work, or visit the District.  One 

of the ways we do this is by talking to and hearing from individuals and organisations in 

Uttlesford about their concerns, ideas and ambitions. 

1.2 This Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been prepared to explain how the 

Council will engage communities, businesses and organisations in the planning 

process. 

The benefits of community engagement include:

 Resolving potential conflicts between parties at an early stage 

 Generating local ownership and fostering community pride

 Creating a better understanding of local community priorities

 Introducing greater clarity and transparency in decision making

The planning system
1.3 The current planning policy system consists of:

 National policy in the form of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

and Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). At the heart of the National Planning 

Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development which 

encourages a culture in which development plays a key role in meeting the 

needs and aspirations of the area. The NPPF still promotes a plan-led system 

whereby decisions must be made in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

 Local policy in the form of the Local Plan, and other appropriate documents 

(produced by District Councils), Neighbourhood Plans (produced by Parish 

Councils and Neighbourhood Forums) and Minerals and Waste Plans 

(produced by County Councils).

Page 23



P 6/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

2 What’s it all about?
What is a statement of community involvement?

2.1 The main purpose of a SCI is to set out how the local community, businesses and 

other organisations with an interest in development in Uttlesford can engage with the 

planning system. It sets out how the Council will involve the community when preparing 

planning documents and deciding planning applications. When involving the 

community in the planning process, account will also be taken of any corporate 

guidance and strategies adopted by the Council. 

Why is a statement of community required?
2.2 Local planning authorities are required to produce a SCI under Section 18 (Part 1) of 

the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). The National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) (2012) stated that: 

“Early and meaningful engagement and collaboration with neighbourhoods, local 

organisations and businesses is essential. A wide section of the community should be 

proactively engaged, so that Local Plans, as far as possible, reflect a collective vision 

and a set of agreed priorities for the sustainable development of the area, including 

those contained in any neighbourhood plans that have been made.” (Paragraph 155)

2.3 In July 2018 a new NPPF was published that replaced the NPPF 2012.  However, the 

transitional arrangements identified in the NPPF 2018 allow for Local Plans that are 

submitted on or before 24 January 2019 to continue to be examined under the NPPF 

2012.

2.4 The previous SCI was adopted in January (2018). The Council is preparing a new 

Local Plan for the district covering the period 2011-2033 which will contain the planning 

policies and proposals that will help shape the future of the District.  This new SCI will 

help to ensure that the new Local Plan takes into account recent legislative changes as 

part of its preparation.

Page 24



P 7/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

3 Uttlesford’s community
3.1 Our ‘community’ includes all of the individuals, groups and organisations that live, work 

or operate within the District.  We recognise that the different groups that make up our 

community have different needs and expectations.  They also have their own desires, 

capabilities and capacity to get involved. This SCI Involvement sets out to maximize 

the opportunities for everyone in the community to get involved.

Table 1. Uttlesford’s Community

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

The interests of local 
communities are represented by 
county, district, parish and town 
councils, all have the capability to 
be involved. Specific interests 
can be represented by amenity or 
interest groups. The community 
is made up of individuals who 
have the ability to respond in 
their own right; however 
particular sections of local 
communities can find it harder to 
get involved.

STATUTORY STAKEHOLDERS

There are certain groups that we 
have to involve. These include 
Historic England, Environment 
Agency, Highways England, 
Natural England, Essex County 
Council and parish/town councils.

DEVELOPERS AND 
LANDOWNERS

Developers are already involved 
in the planning system and will 
seek to be involved. Most can be 
easily identified from previous 
involvement and have the 
capability to be involved. 
Landowners will be keen to 
understand and consider the 
implications of any policies/ 
decisions in order to protect their 
rights to develop or protect their 
land and its value. Both groups 
will be supported in being more 
actively involved in the Local 
Plan.

BUSINESS SECTOR

Local businesses range in size 
from the self-employed and small 
businesses to larger 
organisations. Their capacity to 
be involved also varies. Larger 
organisations may have the 
capacity to get more actively 
involved, whilst smaller 
organisations may need support 
in understanding the planning 
system, how it relates to them 
and how they can get involved. 
The Council will continue to 
improve its engagement with the 
business community.

OTHER AGENCIES

Other organisations can provide 
valuable views regarding specific 
development plans. These 
organisations are easy to identify 
and generally have the capacity 
to be involved. Some may need 
support in understanding the 
Local Plan process and how it 
relates to their operations so they 
are able to contribute effectively.

SERVICE PROVIDERS

Service providers include local 
health trusts/clinical 
commissioning groups, schools, 
utility and transport providers, 
emergency services, community 
development organisations and 
others. All of these can be easily 
identified and have the capacity 
to be involved in the Local Plan 
process. However we will seek to 
involve them only when it is 
relevant for them.

Page 25



P 8/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

4 Principles of engagement
4.1 This section sets out the general principles of community engagement. Undertaking 

consultation is a fundamental part of the planning process.

4.2 Uttlesford’s Corporate Plan 2017 – 2021 (2017) sets out the headline objective to 

promote thriving, safe and healthy communities. Improving community engagement is 

outlined in the Corporate Plan as a core action to achieve this goal.

4.3 Our key principles of engagement are:

 Engaging the community and stakeholders in the early stages of plan-making.

 Encouraging pre-application advice, by advising applicants to discuss future 
development proposals prior to submitting a planning application. 

 Undertaking meaningful consultation, before applications for major development 
are submitted.

 Recognising and enhancing a sense of identity with the local area, creating a local 
sense of pride and greater sense of ‘community’.

 Reaching out to those whose voices are seldom heard, being inclusive, fair and 
representative in the plan-making process.

 Empowering communities through supporting localism, supporting neighbourhood 
planning and other community-related planning activities. 

 Providing the opportunity for feedback; the Council will consider all comments 
received through consultations on policies and make appropriate changes 
accordingly. 

 Ensuring consultation is worthwhile and achieves value for money by balancing 
cost, time constraints and available Council resources.

 Continued engagement with community and stakeholders after a decision has 
been made on a planning application including S106 issues.

Page 26



P 9/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

5 Plan making
5.1 The Council is responsible for plan making. Plan making sets out how an area will 

develop over time and provides a guide for future development. This part of the SCI 

sets out the Council’s standards and approach for consulting Uttlesford’s community in 

the preparation of, and revisions to, plans and explains who, how and when the 

Council will consult when preparing planning policy documents.

5.2 The legal requirements for consultation and community involvement in plan making are 

set by the Government in legislation including The Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act (2004) (as amended), the Neighbourhood Planning Act (2017) and The Town and 

Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (2012) (as amended). This 

legislation sets out the procedure to be followed by local planning authorities in relation 

to the preparation of local plans and supplementary planning documents including who 

is to be consulted and which documents must be made available at each stage of the 

process.  However, the legislative requirements do not specify how communities or 

stakeholders should be involved and accordingly there is flexibility as to how and to 

what detail the Council undertakes its own process of engagement. Furthermore, the 

scale and extent of consultation may vary depending on the subject of the planning 

document. This section of the SCI sets out how the Council will meet these legal 

requirements.

Planning policy documents
5.3 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) (as amended) requires local 

planning authorities to prepare a statutory development plan that will guide future 

development within their area. It identifies the locations for housing, employment and 

other development. 

5.4 The development plan includes adopted local plans and made neighbourhood plans. 

The local plan sets out the vision and core policies for the future development of a 

district. Neighbourhood plans set out a vision and policies to shape the development 

and growth of a local area for a 10, 15 or 20 year period. Once a neighbourhood plan 

is made, brought into force, it becomes part of the development plan. A local planning 

authority may also produce supplementary planning documents (SPDs). 

5.5 In addition to producing a new Local Plan covering the whole of the district, the council 

is also planning on producing Strategic Growth Development Plan Documents for each 

Page 27



P 10/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

of the Garden Communities in the Local Plan.  These documents will set out the detail 

of how the Garden Communities will develop.

5.6 The local plan and Garden Community DPDs are statutory documents subject to 

independent examination.  Supplementary planning documents (SPD) are prepared to 

expand policy or provide further detail to the policies in the development plan.  They 

are not subject to independent examination. SPDs are a material consideration in 

planning decisions. 

5.7 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)/Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is a process 

that will make sure that social, economic and environmental considerations are fully 

taken into account at every stage of preparation for each development plan document 

and Supplementary Planning Document. When a local plan is published to allow 

representations to be submitted the SEA/SA will be published for comments at the 

same time. 

5.8 Where an SEA/SA is produced outside of an update to the Local Plan, the SEA/SA will 

be published for comments to be submitted.  Unless the SEA/SA points towards 

conclusions which suggest the Local Plan is not pursuing the most appropriate strategy 

to deliver its objectives, the Local Plan would not be republished for another period for 

representations to be submitted.

5.9 The development plan for Uttlesford is currently made up of the Uttlesford Local Plan 

(2005), the Essex County Council (ECC) Minerals Local Plan (2016), the ECC Waste 

Local Plan (2014) and the Great Dunmow Neighbourhood Plan (2016). The Council is 

presently preparing a new Local Plan covering the period 2011-2033.

5.10 There are also a number of emerging neighbourhood plans in Uttlesford, including: 

Felsted Neighbourhood Plan; Great and Little Chesterford Neighbourhood Plan; 

Newport and Quendon & Rickling Neighbourhood Plan; Saffron Walden 

Neighbourhood Plan; Stansted Mountfitchet Neighbourhood Plan; Stebbing 

Neighbourhood Plan; and Thaxted Neighbourhood Plan1. At the time of writing this SCI, 

examination of the Thaxted Neighbourhood Plan has been completed and a 

referendum on the plan is intended to be arranged in early 2019.  If the referendum 

votes in favour of the plan, it will join those documents that make up the Development 

Plan for Uttlesford.

1 http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/neighbourhoodplans 

Page 28

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/neighbourhoodplans


P 11/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

5.11 The Council has a number of adopted SPDs. More information on these can be found 

on the planning policy page of the Council’s website2. The Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act (2004) (as amended) also requires the Council to maintain a timetable 

for the preparation and review of the development plan. This is referred to as a Local 

Development Scheme (LDS). Uttlesford’s current LDS can be found at:

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4969/Local-Development-Scheme 

5.12 The Council will support and encourage communities to develop their own community 

led plans - Parish Plans and/or Village/Town Design Statements.  The Council will 

continue to work with the Rural Community Council of Essex to encourage this type of 

participation.  

5.13 The Council is undertaking a project of updating the Conservation Area Appraisals, 

serving Article 4 Directions and compiling a Local Heritage List.  These will be subject 

to consultation and consideration will be given to the use of a range of engagement 

methods listed in Table 5. 

When can you get involved?
5.14 The key formal opportunities to get involved in the preparation of planning policy 

documents are set out in Table 2 and Table 3 below.

Table 2. The Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents

The Local Plan

Preparation stage What happens Key time to get 
involved

Development of the evidence 
base 

Background research and evidence 
gathering to inform the emerging plan

Preparation of the Local Plan 
(Regulation 18)

Inform stakeholders and the public that 
the plan is being produced and consults 
on the plan 

2 http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/localplan 

Page 29

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4969/Local-Development-Scheme
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/localplan


P 12/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

The Local Plan

Preparation stage What happens Key time to get 
involved

Publication (Regulation 19) After taking into account the 
representations received on the 
(Regulation 18) plan, the plan is 
published for a six-week period to allow 
representations to be made

Any Addendum to the Regulation 19 
plan shall be published for a six week 
period to allow representations to be 
made

Submission (Regulation 22) The document will be submitted to the 
Secretary of State for examination along 
with other key supporting documents 

Examination (Regulation 24) An examination is held by an 
independent Inspector. The Inspector 
will assess the soundness of the Local 
Plan. Those people who submitted 
representations at the (Regulation 19) 
stage are entitled to be heard at the 
examination 

Any main modifications the Inspector 
considers necessary to make the plan 
sound would be subject to sustainability 
appraisal and consultation

Adoption (Regulation 26) If the Inspector finds the Local Plan 
sound, the Council will proceed to adopt 
the Local Plan. This may include 
modifications recommended by the 
Inspector

Table 3. Neighbourhood Plans

Page 30



P 13/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Neighbourhood Plans

Preparation stage What happens Key time to get 
involved

Neighbourhood Area 
Designation 

An application for neighbourhood area 
designation will be publicised for six 
weeks (unless the area to which the 
application relates is the whole of the 
area of a parish council and is wholly 
within the area of one local planning 
authority, in which case the Council 
does not have a choice other than to 
approve the area)

Preparing a Draft 
Neighbourhood Plan 

The qualifying body gathers baseline 
information. Engages and consults  
those living and working in the 
neighbourhood area, and starts to 
prepare the draft neighbourhood plan

Pre-Submission 
(Regulation 21)

The qualifying body publicises the draft 
plan for six weeks

Publicising the Submission 
Neighbourhood Plan 
(Regulation 22) 

The qualifying body submits the 
neighbourhood plan to the local 
planning authority (LPA). The LPA 
publicises the neighbourhood plan for a 
period of six weeks. The LPA notifies 
consultation bodies referred to in the 
consultation statement

Examination 
(Regulation 24)

An examination is held by an 
independent examiner. The examiner 
will assess if the neighbourhood plan 
meets the basic conditions

Examiners Modifications The examiner will form a view on 
whether the neighbourhood plan meets 
the basic conditions. This may include 
modifications. If the Council propose to 
make a decision which differs from that 
recommended by the examiner, the 
Council will notify relevant parties 
including those who were previously 
consulted and invite representations for 
a period of six weeks

Page 31



P 14/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Neighbourhood Plans

Preparation stage What happens Key time to get 
involved

Referendum Subject to the neighbourhood plan 
meeting the basic conditions, the 
Council will issue a decision on if the 
neighbourhood plan can proceed to 
referendum

Adoption (Regulation 25) If the neighbourhood plan receives the 
majority of the vote the neighbourhood 
plan will be brought into force 

KEY

Informal engagement 

Formal consultation 

Referendum

5.15 As SPDs do not have development plan status, they are not subject to the same 

process of submission and independent examination as the local plan or 

neighbourhood plans. However, consultation plays an important role in the production 

of SPDs. The methods of engagement considered for planning documents as set out in 

Table 5 below (page 17) also apply to SPDs. The consultation period will involve at 

least one round of engagement with a minimum consultation period of four weeks. 

Following consideration of responses and amendments to the SPD as appropriate, the 

SPD would then be adopted by the Council. In accordance with the Town and Country 

Planning (Local Planning) Regulations (2012) (as amended), prior to adoption a 

consultation statement will be prepared outlining the persons consulted during SPD 

preparation, a summary of the main issues raised during the consultation and how 

those comments have been addressed. An adoption statement will also be prepared 

Page 32



P 15/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

and made available to view, together with the SPD as soon as reasonably practicable 

following adoption.

How will you be kept informed of the development of 
planning policy documents?

5.16 Throughout the process of preparing planning policy documents, from the earliest 

stages through to adoption, community and stakeholders will be kept informed of 

progress as follows:

 The Local Development Scheme3

 The planning policy page of the Council’s website4

 Reports to Cabinet and Council5

 A database of all interested parties wishing to receive information on key 
consultation stages is maintained by the Council. If you wish to be added please 
contact the Planning Policy Team at the Council by email:

planningpolicy@uttlesford.gov.uk 

5.17 Information about neighbourhood plans in Uttlesford is retained on the Planning Policy 

page of the Council website. Details of current emerging neighbourhood plans and 

where more information can be obtained is set out in Table 4 below.

Table 4. Examples of emerging neighbourhood plans in Uttlesford

Neighbourhood Plan More information 

Felsted Neighbourhood Plan http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/felstednp 
http://www.felstednp.org.uk/

Great and Little Chesterford 
Neighbourhood Plan

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/chesterfordsnp
http://greatchesterford-pc.gov.uk/neighbourhood-
plan/

Newport and Quendon & 
Rickling Neighbourhood Plan

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/nqrnp 
https://www.facebook.com/Newport-Quendon-
Rickling-Neighbourhood-Plan-2001363280090063/ 

3 https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4969/Local-Development-Scheme  

4 http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/planningpolicy

5 https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5019/Decision-records-and-notices 

Page 33

mailto:planningpolicy@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/felstednp
http://www.felstednp.org.uk/
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/chesterfordsnp
http://greatchesterford-pc.gov.uk/neighbourhood-plan/
http://greatchesterford-pc.gov.uk/neighbourhood-plan/
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/nqrnp
https://www.facebook.com/Newport-Quendon-Rickling-Neighbourhood-Plan-2001363280090063/
https://www.facebook.com/Newport-Quendon-Rickling-Neighbourhood-Plan-2001363280090063/
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4969/Local-Development-Scheme
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/planningpolicy
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5019/Decision-records-and-notices


P 16/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Saffron Walden 
Neighbourhood Plan

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4963/Saffron-
Walden-Neighbourhood-Plan 
http://www.waldenplan.org/

Stansted Mountfitchet 
Neighbourhood Plan

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/stanstednp
https://www.stanstedneighbourhoodplan.com/what-
is-the-plan

Stebbing Neighbourhood 
Plan

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/stebbingnp
https://www.stebbingneighbourhoodplan.co.uk/

Thaxted Neighbourhood Plan http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/thaxtednp
https://www.thaxtednp.com/about-the-plan

Key stakeholders and community groups
5.18 The Council is required under the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 

(England) Regulations (2012) (as amended) to consult ‘specific consultation bodies’ 

and other interest groups which cover the whole range of voluntary, community, 

special interest, amenity and business interests, referred to as ‘general consultation 

bodies’.  

5.19 The list below refers to key types of groups rather than listing every individual group 

and organisation. The lists are not exhaustive; the Council maintains a comprehensive 

list of consultees which is updated regularly.

Key Stakeholders:

 Environment Agency

 Historic England 

 Natural England

 Network Rail 

 Electronic Communications Operators

 National Grid

 UK Power Networks

 Water and wastewater undertakers

 Homes and Communities Agency

 Hertfordshire and West Essex Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 Highways England 

 Essex County Council

 East of England Ambulance Service

Page 34

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4963/Saffron-Walden-Neighbourhood-Plan
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4963/Saffron-Walden-Neighbourhood-Plan
http://www.waldenplan.org/
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/stanstednp
https://www.stanstedneighbourhoodplan.com/what-is-the-plan
https://www.stanstedneighbourhoodplan.com/what-is-the-plan
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/stebbingnp
https://www.stebbingneighbourhoodplan.co.uk/
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/thaxtednp
https://www.thaxtednp.com/about-the-plan


P 17/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

 Essex and Kent Police

 Essex County Fire & Rescue Service

 Parish and town councils, including those within the District and those that adjoin 
the District

 Adjoining district councils, such as Braintree District, Chelmsford City, East 
Hertfordshire District, North Hertfordshire District, Epping Forest District and South 
Cambridgeshire District councils

 Adjoining county councils – Cambridgeshire County Council and Hertfordshire 
County Council 

 Greater London Authority

5.20 The duty to co-operate was introduced in the Localism Act (2011) and amends the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). It places a legal duty on local planning 

authorities and public bodies to engage constructively, actively and on an on-going 

basis to maximise the effectiveness of local plan preparation in the context of strategic 

cross boundary matters. This means that the Council must seek to actively engage 

neighbouring councils and a range of other agencies when preparing and reviewing its 

planning policies, particularly in relation to strategic priorities and cross-boundary 

issues. The Council will produce a Duty to Cooperate Statement of Compliance which 

will be made available for inspection as part of the Local Plan Examination process.

Page 35



P 18/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Engagement methods on planning policy documents
5.21 The consultation and community involvement methods applied will be proportionate to 

the nature of the planning policy document being prepared.

5.22 INFORMATION: The Council will provide information on what the Council is 

doing, what stage it is at in the preparation of the documents, where documents can be 

inspected, and how people can get involved.

5.23 CONSULTATION: Consultation will take place informally during the research 

stages of documents and formally during the publication stages where people can 

comment on the Council’s proposed policy direction.

5.24 PARTICIPATION: The Council will carry out participation events such as 

workshops and forums where people can be more actively involved where appropriate.

5.25 Every effort will be made to undertake the consultation outside August and the end of 

year holiday period.  However, where this is unavoidable, due to the need to make 

progress on development plan preparation we will seek to ensure that a reasonable 

part of the consultation period extends beyond these holiday periods.

5.26 Local exhibitions will be considered in locations relevant to the subject of consultation, 

in accessible buildings.  The Council will work with the premises provider in identifying 

suitable rooms.  

5.27 A communications and engagement plan will also be prepared where it is appropriate 

to the scope of a planning document. For each stage of the planning documents 

preparation this plan will contain the following: 

 The key milestones for plan making along with key dates for consultation, 
indicating when people will be involved.

 Outline the specific consultation and engagement methods of how people are to 
be involved and how they can respond.

 Provide details of document availability.

 Explain how feedback will be provided and how comments will be taken into 
account.

Page 36



P 19/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Table 5. Engagement methods considered for planning documents

Method Purpose Resources

Media

e.g. Publicity in local 
newspapers; articles in 
parish magazines; 
Uttlesford Life magazine6

 Raising awareness  
Reaching wide audience

 Publicising how to get 
involved

 High cost efficiency 

 Staff time to prepare 
material

Internet 

Uttlesford website, 
emails, Keep me posted 
e-newsletter; Facebook 
and Twitter 

 Up-to-date information 
about progress and how 
to get involved

 Access to documents to 
meet minimum 
requirement.

 High cost efficiency 

 Posting information 
online is low cost once 
established

Leaflets and posters

Promoting the 
consultation

 Raising awareness    

 Reaching wide audience

 Publicising how to get 
involved

 Medium cost efficiency

 Production of material 
can involve significant 
costs

 Staff time to prepare and 
distribute material

Letters 

to statutory bodies
 To meet minimum 

requirement

 Medium cost efficiency

 Staff time to write and 
administrate posting

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

Mailing 

List of persons and 
companies wishing to be 
notified

 Keeping people up to 
date on key stages and 
how to get involved

 High cost efficiency 
electronically

 Low cost efficiency 
through the post. Staff 
time to write and 
administrate posting

6 http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/uttlesfordlife

Page 37

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/uttlesfordlife


P 20/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Documents 

Available to view and 
comment on via the 
Council’s on-line 
consultation portal 
objective

 Meeting minimum 
requirement in allowing 
everyone the opportunity 
to comment on draft 
documents via a range 
of methods

 High cost efficiency

 Staff time updating the 
on-line consultation 
period

Documents

Available for inspection at 
principal and other offices 
and libraries

 Meeting minimum 
requirement in allowing 
everyone the opportunity 
to comment on draft 
documents

 High cost efficiency 

 Staff time may be 
needed to answer 
questions

Questionnaires

Paper and electronic 
format

 Focus consultation on 
key questions

 High cost efficiency in 
electronic format 

 Low cost efficiency in 
paper format

 Staff time to collate 
responses

Parish/town council 
meetings

 Reaching community 
groups through existing 
meetings

 Gain understanding of 
views regarding a 
specific area

 High cost efficiency

 Staff time to attend 
meetings and prepare 
any material

Town and Parish 
Council Forum

 Active involvement of 
local councils

 Low/medium cost 
efficiency

 Staff time to attend and 
prepare material

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N

Pre-existing Forums 
such as Uttlesford’s 
Tenant Forum7 and 
Business Exchange 
Forum

 Disseminate information 
and canvass opinion 
from selected groups

 Low/medium cost 
efficiency

 Staff time to attend and 
prepare material

7 http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/tenantforum

Page 38

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/tenantforum


P 21/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Uttlesford Futures 
meetings8 

 Active involvement of 
the Local Strategic 
Partnership

 Low/medium cost 
efficiency

 Staff time to attend and 
prepare material

Citizens Panel9
 Help gain more 

understanding of public 
concerns

 Low/medium cost 
efficiency

 Staff time to attend and 
prepare material

Focus groups 

(selected groups of 
participants with 
particular characteristics)

 Useful for area based or 
topic specific 
discussions and 
presentation of options

 Help gain more 
understanding of public 
concerns

 Low/medium cost 
efficiency

 Staff time to attend and 
prepare material

Workshops

 Bringing together 
representatives from 
different sectors to be 
actively involved in 
identifying 
issues/options and 
priorities

 Medium/high: Time is 
needed for preparation

 Specialist skills may be 
required

PA
R

TI
C

IP
A

TI
O

N

Local exhibitions 

 Communicating the key 
messages about the 
planning document 
being consulted upon 
and encouraging people 
to put forward their 
views

 Low cost efficiency

 Preparation of materials 
and staff time

Feeding information into decisions

8 https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5138/Uttlesford-Futures 
9 https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5497/Citizens-Panel 

Page 39

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5138/Uttlesford-Futures
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5497/Citizens-Panel


P 22/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

5.28 The information and comments the Council obtains through participation and 

consultation with the community and stakeholders will be used to inform the Council’s 

decisions and shape any documents produced.

5.29 Formally made comments need to be made either through the consultation portal (if 

the document is published on the portal), by email or by letter.  Respondents are 

required to provide their name and contact details, preferably email. They will be added 

to a database which will be used to keep people informed of the next stages in the plan 

making process.  Anonymous comments will not be accepted.

5.30 All comments are registered on the consultation portal and are available to view at 

http://uttlesford-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal  Representor’s name and organisation, 

if appropriate, are shown against the comment. Contact details remain confidential.

5.31 Consultation Statement: The Council will produce a Consultation Statement which 

will summarise the main issues raised as a result of consultation on planning policy 

document consultations and how these have been addressed. 

5.32 It is the responsibility of the planning policy team to prepare planning policy documents, 

undertake consultation, consider the comments and recommend actions to the 

Member Working Group and Cabinet, and then implement the decisions of Members. 

The recommendations should clearly explain the reasoning for the recommendation 

taking into account the views of stakeholders and consultees.  

5.33 Cabinet is responsible for approving plans and related documents for consultation and 

submission. Full Council is responsible for approving the submission and adoption of 

the Local Plan. Any future changes to the delegation of decisions will be set out in the 

Council procedures and standing orders.

5.34 All documents produced will be available at the Council’s principal office and on the 

Uttlesford website. Planning documents which are being consulted upon will also be 

sent to the Council’s other offices, and local libraries.

Page 40

http://uttlesford-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal


P 23/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

6 Planning applications
6.1 Involving people in planning application process allows them to influence development 

as it is being designed and helps to resolve issues more meaningfully. 

The pre-application stage
6.2 All applicants are encouraged to discuss future development proposals with the 

Council prior to submitting a planning application. Our development management team 

can advise on the general acceptability of proposals before they are submitted and 

explain what information is likely to be required to enable the determination of an 

application. Further information is contained in the Council’s Planning Application 

Guidance Notes and a Planning Application Checklist. These are available on the 

Council’s website10. 

6.3 Applicants are encouraged to involve the community early on their planning 

applications. Early engagement with local people before a formal application will help 

to address issues early on may help to avoid unnecessary objections being made at a 

later stage. 

Application stage
6.4 Once the application is submitted, the Council must publicise it, consult the relevant 

parish or town council, and allow people the opportunity to contribute their views in 

writing or online. The legal requirements for consultation on submitted planning 

applications is set by the Government in legislation including The Town and County 

Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order (2015) as amended. 

These are set out in more detail below. All applications are publicised via the Council’s 

website under Application and Decision Search11. In addition all applications are 

publicised through a neighbour notification letter or if that is not appropriate by a site 

notice.  Table 6 sets out those circumstances when a site notice or notice in a 

newspaper is required in addition to the neighbour notification letter. 

Table 6. Engagement on planning applications

10 http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/planningapplicationforms 

11 https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4863/Comment-or-search-for-a-planning-application  

Page 41

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/planningapplicationforms
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4863/Comment-or-search-for-a-planning-application


P 24/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Type of development Publicity required

Development where the application is 
accompanied by an environmental 
statement

 Notice in the local newspaper
 Site notice
 Council website

Departure from the development plan
 Notice in the local newspaper 
 Site notice
 Council website

Development affecting a public right 
of way

 Notice in the local newspaper 
 Site notice
 Council website

Major development
 Notice in the local newspaper
 Site notice or neighbour 

notification
 Council website

Development affecting a listed 
building or its setting

 Notice in the local newspaper
 Site notice or neighbour 

notification
 Council website

Development affecting a conservation 
area or its setting

 Notice in the local newspaper 
 Site notice or neighbour 

notification
 Council website

Other development  Site notice or neighbour 
notification

Page 42



P 25/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Table 7. Consultation periods on planning applications 

Method of publicity Consultation period

Notice in a local newspaper 21 days from the date of publication

Site notice 21 days from the date that the notice was 
first displayed

Neighbour notification letter 21 days from the day on which the 
notification letter was delivered

Website 21 days from the date of publication 

Revised plans

Where revised plans are submitted as 
part of a planning application these will 
be given a reduced consultation time 
period, if consultation is required. An 
application already on an agenda may be 
withdrawn from the agenda to allow 
further consultation

6.5 In cases where neighbours are to be notified this will be undertaken in writing, either 

electronically or by letter. The Council will put up site notices when required and also 

publish planning applications online. Parish councils (and, where appropriate on 

significant applications, known residents’ associations and local community groups) 

are notified of individual planning applications in their area. If the planning officer 

considers the development is likely to have a wider impact, neighbouring parish 

councils may also be notified.

6.6 Applicants are required to publicise applications where: 

 An environmental statement is submitted, after the application has been made to 
the Council

 Certain types of development for agriculture, forestry and for the demolition of 
buildings

6.7 Prior to submission or during determination of an application, discussions will be held 

between planning officers, and applicants and representative of the parish council to 

discuss issues such as infrastructure, amenities and matters subject to any S106. 

Page 43



P 26/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

Determining planning applications 
6.8 Planning applications are determined against the Development Plan and other material 

considerations. Often, planning permission may be granted subject to conditions to 

ensure that the development is acceptable, or to prevent certain impacts or activities 

arising from the proposal. There are two ways decisions are made on planning 

applications determined by the Council: Planning Committee and delegated decisions.

6.9 Planning Committee: The Planning Committee comprises elected councillors and is 

responsible for making decisions on applications received by the Council, excluding 

those which fall within delegated powers unless the application is called in by a 

councillor for determination by Planning Committee.

6.10 Committee reports are available five working days before Committee. On applications 

reported to Committee the Council operates a policy of public speaking.  Details on 

how to get involved in meetings can be found on the website under Meetings and the 

Public or by contacting a democratic services officer on 01799 510369.  

6.11 Delegated decisions: The Council receives a large volume of applications each year, 

and it is impractical for all applications to be determined by the Planning Committee. 

Planning legislation permits the Council to delegate the determination of certain 

planning applications to officers rather than the Planning Committee.  The scheme of 

delegation is set out in Part 3 the Council’s Constitution available on the website site 

(https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5028/Constitution )  

6.12 Committee and delegated reports set out the relevant local and national polices; 

town/parish council comments, comments of consultees, comments of representations; 

and an appraisal of the issues to be considered in determining the application. If an 

application is recommended for approval the report will set out any conditions and 

Heads of Terms for the S106 obligation. 

6.13 A decision notice will be sent to the applicant, explaining the reasons why a planning 

application has or has not been granted planning permission. Notification of the 

decision will also be sent to the Parish Council and to those members of the public who 

have made representations.  Planning decisions are published on the Council’s 

website under the relevant planning application number. The accompanying officer 

reports, which set out the planning considerations and make a recommendation of 

approval or refusal, may also be obtained online. 

Page 44

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5028/Constitution


P 27/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

6.14 Appeals: If an application is refused or not determined within statutory timeframes, the 

applicant may exercise their right to appeal. When the Council is notified of an appeal 

by the Planning Inspectorate, the Council will notify interested parties of the appeal and 

provide a copy of comments made on the application to the Planning Inspectorate. 

Interested parties will be advised on how they can participate in the appeal process, 

including venue and time of any informal hearing or public inquiry.

Outside the planning application process
6.15 Prior approvals: The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order (2015) (GPDO) allows for specific changes of use subject to a prior 

approval process. The Council will consult adjoining neighbours as required by 

regulations for all prior approvals. Up-to-date guidance on prior approvals, including 

neighbour notifications can be found on the planning portal website: 

www.planningportal.gov.uk. 

6.16 Permissions in principle: The Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land 

Register) Regulations (2017) and the Town and Country Planning (Permission in 

Principle) Order (2017) require local planning authorities to prepare and maintain 

registers of brownfield land. The Order provides that sites entered on Part 2 of the new 

brownfield registers will be granted permission in principle. Permission in principle will 

settle the fundamental principles of development (use, location, amount of 

development) for the brownfield site giving developers/applicants more certainty. A 

developer cannot proceed with any development, however, until they have also 

obtained technical details consent. The technical details consent will assess the 

detailed design, ensure appropriate mitigation of impacts and that any contributions to 

essential infrastructure are secured. Both the permission in principle and the technical 

details consent stages must be determined in accordance with the local development 

plan, the National Planning Policy Framework and other material considerations. The 

Council will meet the statutory requirements for consultation including contacting parish 

and town councils under the Neighbourhood Planning Act (2017) in relation to 

permissions in principle.

Page 45

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/


P 28/28 May 2017

Consultation Draft Statement of Community 

Involvement

7 Monitoring and Review
7.1 This SCI will be subject to review to ensure the community involvement techniques 

used are successful. As the success of community involvement techniques are 

monitored and reviewed, the results will be fed into the preparation of future stages of 

the Local Plan and other planning policy documents and the consideration of 

significant planning applications.

8 Contact us
8.1 For more information on this Statement of Community Involvement please contact us 

at: 

Planning Policy 
Uttlesford District Council 
London Road
Saffron Walden
Essex CB11 4ER

Tel: 01799 510346 or 01799 510454 or 01799 510637

Email: planningpolicy@uttlesford.gov.uk 

Page 46

mailto:planningpolicy@uttlesford.gov.uk


Committee: Planning Policy Working Group

Title: Updating the Regulation 19 Sustainability 
Appraisal

Date:
20 November 2018

Report 
Author:

Stephen Miles, Planning Policy Team Leader, 
346

Summary

1. A review of the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of the Regulation 19 Local Plan 
has identified a number of material issues with the SA, as well as a number of 
options for dealing with those issues.  The purpose of this report is to update 
members on the actions being taken.

Recommendations

2. That the Planning Policy Working Group notes the findings of the SA review 
and the actions taken by officers to address these findings.  

Financial Implications

3. The costs associated with the SA review and the updated SA can be met from 
the Local Plan forecasted spend for 2018/19.  Officers considered not 
updating the SA or updating it with a ‘light touch’, in light of the findings of the 
SA review, however officers are of the view that more significant updating is 
appropriate.

Background Papers

4. The letters from the Planning Inspector to the North Essex Authorities (NEA) 
of 8 June and 2 August; the review of the Regulation 19 SA.

Impact 

5.       

Communication/Consultation The updated SA will be published for a 
period for representations to be submitted.

Community Safety N/a

Equalities N/a

Health and Safety N/a

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

The SA is a legal requirement of producing 
a Local Plan, and the SA will be tested at 
examination.

Page 47

Agenda Item 5

https://www.braintree.gov.uk/downloads/file/7906/ied011_-_inspectors_section_1_post-hearing_letter_to_neas_-_8_june_2018
https://www.braintree.gov.uk/downloads/file/7962/ied013_inspector_s_section_1_response_to_nea004_%E2%80%93_2nd_august_2018


Sustainability The SA compares the strategy in the Local 
Plan to reasonable alternatives and 
assesses these against sustainability 
objectives.

Ward-specific impacts All

Workforce/Workplace N/a

Situation

6. The series of letters the NEA received from their inspector identified a number 
of issues with their plans, including their Sustainability Appraisal.  

7. Following the receipt of this letter by the NEA, Uttlesford District Council 
commissioned a review of the SA of the Regulation 19 Local Plan to 
understand how our SA held up to these (and other) criticisms.  

8. The SA review can be found at Appendix 1 to this report and identified a 
number of concerns with the SA of the Regulation 19 Local Plan, as well as 
identifying three options for addressing these concerns.  The first of these 
options is a more light touch approach to addressing the issues within the 
existing SA, while options 2 and 3 look at a more fundamental update of the 
SA.  

9. Officers have obtained legal advice on the SA review; the legal advice has 
strongly recommended the more fundamental updating of the SA.  The 
barrister advising the Council has also recommended publishing the updated 
SA for a period of representations once it is complete, and submitting any 
responses to the Inspector.  The barrister does not consider that this will 
necessitate the Local Plan to be published for representations alongside the 
SA, unless the updated SA points to conclusions which suggest that the Local 
Plan is not the most appropriate strategy to deliver its objectives, in the light of 
a comparative assessment with reasonable alternatives.  

10.Taking into account the legal advice, and the intention to submit the Local Plan 
on or before 24 January, officers have commissioned consultants AECOM to 
undertake the more fundamental update of the SA.  

Risk Analysis

11.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

The updated SA 
is not ready for 
submission

1 – Unlikely, 
the 
consultants 
consider that, 
under an 

3 – The 
Council would 
have to 
consider 
whether it 

Officers will work 
closely with the 
consultants to ensure 
their work can be 
completed as swiftly 

Page 48



accelerated 
timetable, the 
work can be 
complete 
before 
Christmas

could submit 
the Local Plan 
without the 
updated SA 
work

as possible

The updated SA 
identifies that the 
Local Plan is not 
the most 
appropriate 
strategy

2 – The SA 
review 
considers that 
reasonable 
alternatives 
have not been 
clearly 
identified, 
described or 
evaluated.  It 
is possible 
that looking 
again at 
potential 
reasonable 
alternatives 
may identify a 
more 
appropriate 
strategy.

4 – The 
Council is 
unlikely to be 
able to submit 
the Local Plan 
on or before 
24 January.  
Instead the 
Council would 
have to 
consider how 
the plan could 
be rewritten to 
take account 
of the updated 
SA.  The 
timing of this 
would also 
mean that the 
Local Plan 
would have to 
be consistent 
with the NPPF 
2018.

Officers will work 
closely with the 
consultants to ensure 
the decisions and 
analysis that informed 
the draft Local Plan is 
explained fully.

The additional 
work in the final 
stages of 
preparation for 
submission mean 
that other work is 
not as fully 
developed as it 
would otherwise 
have been

3 – Close 
working with 
the 
consultants 
will take 
resource away 
from preparing 
the other 
documentation 
necessary for 
submission

2 – 
Documents 
submitted 
alongside the 
Local Plan will 
have had less 
thought and 
work put into 
them.

Officers will prioritise 
work to ensure the 
minimum 
requirements for 
submission are met.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Uttlesford District Council 
Local Plan 

Independent Review of the Sustainability Appraisal 
(Regulation 19 Local Plan Consultation) 
 
 

Uttlesford District Council 
 
 
  

  

 

 

November 2018 

 

 

Page 51



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

  Independent Review of the Reg19 SA Report  
  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
 
 

Quality information 

Prepared by  Checked by  Verified by  Approved by 

       

Alastair Peattie 
Associate Director 

 Steve Smith 

Technical Director 

 Steve Smith 

Technical Director 

 Steve Smith 

Technical Director 

 

 

Revision history 

Revision Revision date Details Name Position 

v1 28 September 2018 Draft for internal review Alastair Peattie Associate Director 

v2 02 October 2018 Draft for client review Alastair Peattie Associate Director 

v3 02 November 2018 Final version Alastair Peattie Associate Director 

 
 
 
  

Page 52



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

  Independent Review of the Reg19 SA Report  
  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
 
 

 

Prepared for: 

Uttlesford District Council   

 

 

Prepared by: 

 AECOM Limited 

3rd Floor, Portwall Place 

Portwall Lane 

Bristol BS1 6NA 

United Kingdom 

 

T: +44 117 901 7000 

aecom.com 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

© 2018 AECOM Limited. All Rights Reserved.   

This document has been prepared by AECOM Limited (“AECOM”) for sole use of our client (the 

“Client”) in accordance with generally accepted consultancy principles, the budget for fees and the 

terms of reference agreed between AECOM and the Client. Any information provided by third parties 

and referred to herein has not been checked or verified by AECOM, unless otherwise expressly stated 

in the document. No third party may rely upon this document without the prior and express written 

agreement of AECOM. 

  

Page 53



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

  Independent Review of the Reg19 SA Report  
  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 54



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

  Independent Review of the Reg19 SA Report  
  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
 
 

 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................................. 1 

Background ............................................................................................................... 1 

Method ...................................................................................................................... 1 

Structure of this report ............................................................................................... 3 

 
2. Review of regulatory compliance ........................................................................... 4 

Probable and potential non-compliance issues .......................................................... 4 

 
3. Review of substantive content and internal coherence ........................................ 6 

Introduction ................................................................................................................ 6 

Issues and Options 2015 ........................................................................................... 6 

Regulation 18 Preferred Options Local Plan 2016 - 2017 ......................................... 11 

Regulation 19 Local Plan 2018 ................................................................................ 23 

 
4. Inspector’s and stakeholder comments .............................................................. 26 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 26 

NEA Inspector’s concerns ........................................................................................ 26 

Regulation 19 comments ......................................................................................... 26 

 
5. Conclusions and recommendations .................................................................... 28 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 28 

Conclusions ............................................................................................................. 28 

Recommendations ................................................................................................... 28 

 
Appendix I: Regulatory requirements .............................................................................. 31 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 55



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

  Independent Review of the Reg19 SA Report  
  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 56



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
1 
 

1. Introduction 
1.1 Uttlesford District Council (UDC) commissioned AECOM to undertake an independent review of 

the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Report that accompanied the Regulation 19 Pre-submission 

Local Plan on consultation from June to August 2018. 

Background 
1.2 The need for an independent review primarily arose as a result of the Examination into the 

North Essex Authorities (NEA) Local Plans (Strategic Section One) for Braintree District, 

Colchester Borough and Tendring District.  In particular, the publication of the Inspector’s Post-

Hearing Letter in June 2018, which raised a number of concerns in relation to the Strategic 

Section One Plan and the SA process it was subject to.  There are similarities between the NEA 

Local Plans and the Uttlesford Local Plan in terms of their reliance on Garden Communities 

and the Regulation 19 SA Report was also produced by the same consultants that carried out 

the SA for the NEA’s Strategic Section One Plan. 

1.3 Further to the issues identified above, UDC has also received a number of representations on 

the Regulation 19 SA Report following the consultation that object to or criticise the SA process. 

1.4 As a result of the issues above, UDC determined that it would be prudent to commission an 

independent review to determine if the criticisms raised by the Inspector in relation to the SA 

process for the NEA’s Strategic Section One Plan, are also applicable to the SA process for the 

emerging Uttlesford Local Plan.  If they are applicable, UDC would like to understand what 

steps can be taken to address any identified risks and ensure a robust SA process. 

Method 
1.5 This review is based on two elements, regulatory compliance and substantive content/ 

coherence, i.e. does the SA Report make sense?  The details of these elements are set out 

below: 

1. Regulatory compliance - does the documentation provide adequate evidence that the 

Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 (the ‘SEA 

Regulations’) have been complied with? 

2. Substantive content and coherence - do the appraisal findings ‘make sense’ and are 

they consistent?  Is the narrative relating to reasonable alternatives, in particular for the 

spatial strategy, cogent and are the arguments logical? 

1.6 It is important to note that regulatory and substantive reviews should not be read in isolation 

from one another.   

1.7 The compliance review  is also underpinned by two pieces of guidance in addition to the SEA 

Regulations: 

 A Practical Guide to the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive (the ‘Practical 

Guide’);
1
 and 

 the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).
2
 

1.8 It is also informed by several legal judgments, notably: 

 R (Save Historic Newmarket Limited) v Forest Heath District Council [2011] EWHC 606 

(Admin) (Collins J) (‘Save Historic Newmarket’).  

                                                                                                           
1
 ODPM (now MHCLG) (2005) A Practical Guide to the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive. 

www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7657/practicalguidesea.pdf.  
2
 See: http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/blog/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-

appraisal/.  

Page 57

file:///C:/Users/alex.white/Downloads/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7657/practicalguidesea.pdf
http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/blog/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-appraisal/
http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/blog/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-appraisal/


Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
2 
 

 Heard v Broadland District Council [2012] EWHC 344 (Admin) (Ouseley J) (‘Heard’). 

 R (Buckingham County Council and Others) v Secretary of State for Transport [2013] 

EWHC 481 (Admin) (Ouseley J) (‘HS2’). 

 R (Chalfont St Peter Parish Council) v Chiltern District Council [2013] EWHC 1877 (Admin) 

(His Honour Judge Foster) (‘Chalfont St Peter’ (Admin Court)). 

 Ashdown Forest Economic Development LLP v Secretary of State for Communities and 

Local Government [2014] EWHC 406 (Admin) (Sales J, as he then was) (‘Ashdown 

Forest’).  

 Friends of the Earth England, Wales and Northern Ireland Limited v The Welsh Ministers 

[2015] EWHC 776 (Admin) (Hickenbottom, J) (‘Welsh Ministers’). 

 Satnam Millennium Limited v Warrington Borough Council [2015] EWHC 370 (Admin) 

(Stewart, J) (‘Satnam’). 

Regulatory compliance 

1.9 The legal requirements for Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) are set out in the SEA 

Regulations which transpose Directive 2001/42/EC ‘on the assessment of the effects of certain 

plans and programmes on the environment’ (the ‘SEA Directive’) into domestic law. 

1.10 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) sets out that development plans (Local 

Plans) need to be accompanied by an appraisal of sustainability; the NPPG interprets this as 

SA and states that: 

“Sustainability appraisal is integral to the preparation and development of a Local Plan, to 

identify how sustainable development is being addressed…” 

NPPG Paragraph: 006 Reference ID: 11-006-20140306 

1.11 The NPPG goes on to state that: 

“Sustainability appraisal should meet all of the requirements of the Environmental Assessment 

of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004…” 

NPPG Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 11-007-20140306 

1.12 The outcome of the above is that the SEA Regulations form the legal framework underpinning 

the SA process and these Regulations are therefore the definitive benchmark against which to 

review the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018). 

1.13 Our review is structured in a table (see Appendix I) which provides a commentary and a green/ 

amber/ red score with respect to each requirement of the SEA Regulations.  The colour coding 

is described in Table 1 below. 

 Table 1: Regulatory compliance key 

Colour  

 Probable non-compliance issue, high risk of successful legal challenge 

 Potential non-compliance issue, some risk of successful legal challenge 

 Likely compliance, low risk of successful legal challenge 

  

1.14 In cases where the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) scores red or amber, mitigation is 

proposed to put right any potential deficiencies prior to submitting the Local Plan and SA Report 

to the Secretary of State. 

Page 58



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
3 
 

Substantive content and coherence 

1.15 This is a less objective test of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) in that it relies on the 

experience and professional judgement of the reviewer to determine the extent to which the SA 

Report ‘makes sense’.  The review focuses on two specific areas: 

1. Reasonable alternatives - an analysis of the approach to defining and describing 

reasonable alternatives.  

2. Appraisal findings - is the appraisal objective, consistent, coherent and does it accurately 

reflect the evidence base. 

Inspector’s and stakeholder comments 

1.16 Based on the findings of the regulatory and substantive review, the report will then seek to 

answer the following questions: 

 To what extent are the criticisms of the SA for the NEA Strategic Section One Local Plan 

raised by the Inspector examining that plan, applicable to the SA for the Uttlesford Local 

Plan?; and 

 To what degree are the criticism raised by stakeholders valid? 

Structure of this report 
1.17 Following this introductory chapter the report is structured as follows: 

 Chapter 2 - sets out the findings of the regulatory compliance review. 

 Chapter 3 - sets out the findings of the substantive content and coherence review. 

 Chapter 4 - considers the extent to which the criticisms raised by the Inspector for the NEA 

Strategic One Plan are relevant and if the criticisms raised through the representations are 

valid. 

 Chapter 5 - Conclusions and recommendations. 

  

Page 59



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
4 
 

2. Review of regulatory compliance 
2.1 This section sets out the summary findings of the regulatory review, for the full assessment 

please see Appendix I.  It is important to note that the regulatory review should not be read in 

isolation, the substantive review has helped to inform the findings in Appendix 1, particularly 

around the consideration of reasonable alternatives. 

Probable and potential non-compliance issues 
2.2 The regulatory review identified that the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) in its current 

form is inadequate in terms of compliance with the SEA Regulations.  The detail on the non-

compliance issues can be found in Appendix 1.  They key non-compliance issues identified 

through the review are summarised below.  

Regulation 12 - Preparation of the SA Report 

2.3 Regulation 12 (2) requires the [SA] report to identify, describe and evaluate the likely significant 

effects on the environment of: 

a) Implementing the plan or programme; and 

b) Reasonable alternatives taking into account the objectives and geographical scope of the 

plan or programme. 

2.4 One of the key objectives of the Local Plan is to meet the needs for new homes.  In trying to 

identify alternatives for delivering the identified need, the SA process considers the quanta and 

distribution of housing separately.  However, quanta and distribution are inextricably linked and 

stakeholders should ideally be presented with a series of alternative spatial strategy options 

that vary in terms of both quanta and distribution (unless the quantum of new housing required 

is very clear cut in which case alternative distribution options will suffice).   

2.5 As a result of the approach above, alternatives were not developed taking into account the 

objectives of the Local Plan.  This resulted in the majority of alternatives for the distribution and 

quanta of housing growth under Policies SP2 and SP3 being either not reasonable or 

performing significantly worse against the SA Objectives compared to the preferred approach. 

2.6 Regulation 12 (3) requires the [SA] Report to include the information set out in Schedule 2.  

There are a number of instances where the review found potential non-compliance issues in 

relation to Schedule 2, these are set out below.  

2.7 Schedule 2 (1) requires that the [SA] Report includes an outline of the contents and main 

objectives of the Plan.  While, the purpose and content of the Local Plan is provided in Section 

1.2 of the Regulation SA Report it does not set out the objectives.  This is important as the SEA 

Regulations states under Regulation 12 (2) that the report shall identify, describe and evaluate 

the likely significant effects on the environment of reasonable alternatives taking into account 

the objectives and the geographical scope of the plan. 

2.8 Schedule 2 (6) relates to the evaluation of likely significant effects.  The appraisal method is 

presented in Chapter 4, Section 4.6 of the Regulation 19 SA Report.  It allows for the 

identification of the nature and significance of effects as well as their duration.  Secondary, 

cumulative and synergistic effects are identified throughout the report where necessary.  All the 

topics referred to in the SEA Regulations and the wider topics you would expect to see 

considered through a SA are included.  However, there are a number of concerns in relation to 

the objectivity of the appraisal and assumptions made for Garden Community options and 

strategic alternatives.  Please refer to the substantive review in Chapter 3 for further details. 

2.9 Schedule 2 (8) requires the [SA] report to provide an outline of the reasons for selecting the 

alternatives dealt with.  The Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not clearly explain how 

and why alternatives were identified and why the preferred approach was selected in light of 

the alternatives considered. 

Page 60



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
5 
 

2.10 Schedule 2 (10) requires the production of a Non-Technical Summary (NTS) setting out the 

information provided under Schedule 2.  While a separate NTS has been provided and contains 

the majority of information that is required, it appears to be missing key information relating to 

the development and appraisal of reasonable alternatives.  The NTS only briefly explains how 

Garden Communities (GCs) were considered and provides a summary of the comparative 

appraisal of the seven individual GC options.  It does not provide any information or explanation 

in relation to the GC scenarios or the subsequent alternatives identified for the quanta or 

distribution or growth.   

Regulation 13 - Consultation procedures 

2.11 Regulation 13 requires the [SA] report to be published alongside the Draft Plan.  The SA Report 

was published alongside the Regulation 19 Local Plan for consultation; however, given the 

concerns identified above in relation to reasonable alternatives, it could be argued that this 

consultation was not effective.   

Recommendations 

2.12 The recommendations for how to address the potential non-compliance issues identified above 

are set out in Chapter 5 of this report. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 61



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
6 
 

3. Review of substantive content and 
internal coherence  

Introduction 
3.1 This chapter sets out the findings of the substantive review.  The focus of the substantive 

review has been on the development and appraisal of reasonable alternatives through the SA 

process, in particular with respect to the spatial strategy (Regulation 19 Policies SP2 and SP3).  

This section is structured chronologically and is primarily based on the material presented 

within the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018), although there are also references to 

previously published SA Reports and other evidence.   

Issues and Options 2015 

Areas of Search 

3.2 We understand from Chapter 5 and Appendices 3 and 4 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 

2018) that broad Areas of Search (AoS) were identified at this stage for new Garden 

Communities (GCs), urban extensions and village extensions/ small sites. 

3.3 Appendix 4 states that AoS for new settlements were identified based on their potential to 

contribute to effective cross-boundary strategic planning priorities; minimise the need to travel 

by car; leisure opportunities and other facilities; and access to strategic highways and rail 

network.  Areas were excluded if they contained significant constraints, such as Registered 

Parks or Gardens and Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs).   

3.4 Appendix 3 states that the identification of AoS for urban extensions were focused around the 

two main settlements in the District (Saffron Walden and Great Dunmow) as well as Bishop’s 

Stortford, which falls within East Hertfordshire District.   

3.5 The Council explored the potential for focusing development at the District’s Key Villages (in the 

form of village extensions) and Type A Villages (in the form of small sites) as per the District’s 

Settlement Hierarchy.   

3.6 The AoS identified at this stage are illustrated in Figure 1 on the next page, which is taken from 

Appendix 3 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018). 

Page 62



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
7 
 

 Figure 1:  New settlement Areas of Search in 2015 

 

3.7 Each AoS was subjected to a high level appraisal against the SA Objectives, which essentially 

identified a range of potential issues and benefits.  A summary of the findings is presented in 

Appendices 3 and 4 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018). 

3.8 Exploring broad areas for growth and carrying out a high level appraisal exploring constraints/ 

benefits is considered to be an appropriate and proportionate approach at this early stage in 

plan-making.   

3.9 A summary of this high level appraisal work is presented in Appendix 3 of the Regulation 19 SA 

Report (June 2018).   

Page 63



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
8 
 

3.10 The SA at that time concluded that: 

“…focusing development to one or more new settlements is likely to have comparatively less 

constraints than extensions of existing settlements and villages, or perhaps more specifically, 

new settlements have better scope to mitigate negative impacts on site. There is also less of a 

threat of secondary and cumulative impacts on existing settlements where multiple extensions 

to existing settlements may be required to meet housing targets.  

It is however likely that capacity for expansion exists in the surrounding areas of each of the 

towns and such a focus, if proportionate to the existing settlement and in mind of identified 

broad constraints, would contribute to meeting the existing and identified housing needs of the 

District. This will be particularly important in the earlier stages of the plan period.  

Development of the Key Villages and Type A Villages will also meet this need, again if 

proportionate to each settlement and in mind of each’s specific constraints. A number of 

villages contain rail links and this benefit, in a District that is not particularly well served by 

strategic roads or public transport due to its rural nature enhances the sustainability of 

development in these settlements pending other considerations.  

The development of one or more new settlements would contribute to meeting future needs, 

again in consideration of known constraints in specific areas; broadly summarised as 

predominantly transport implications and suitable access to the strategic road network. Should 

suitable additional junctions or access to these strategic roads be forthcoming, development of 

the surrounding villages may become more sustainable in turn. This would similarly be the case 

for any new rail infrastructure in the District”. 

3.11 The above summary does not provide a particularly clear picture of the findings of the 

appraisal.  It is also confusing as potential AoS were being explored but the narrative above 

seems to suggest that a comparative assessment was carried out between new settlements, 

urban extensions and growth at villages.  

Strategic scenarios 

3.12 Chapter 5 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) explains that a number of strategic 

scenarios (discussed further below) were then explored in 2015 to deliver the objectively 

assessed housing need (OAHN) as it was understood at that time.  It is noted that Chapter 5 

and Appendix 3 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) do not clearly set out the situation 

in terms of OAHN at that time.  It appears that two different levels of growth were considered, 

although it is noted that Appendix 3 of the SA Report states that there were three.  The first 

level of 580 dwellings per annum (dpa) was based on the comments of the Inspector examining 

the subsequently withdrawn Submission Local Plan in December 2014.  A higher level of 

growth at 750 dpa was also explored to take account of changes in population projections that 

could increase the level of housing need. 

3.13 Neither Chapter 5 nor Appendix 3 of the SA Report clearly explain how the AoS work referred to 

above was fed into the development of these strategic scenarios.  Having said this, it is evident 

that the general principles reflected in the AoS - i.e. a new settlement, expansion of the main 

towns and expansion of the villages - were taken forward and represented in the scenarios. 

3.14 Chapter 5 explains that under both the 580 dpa and 750 dpa scenarios, extant permissions 

accounted for 5,000 dwellings and a windfall allowance of 50 dwellings per annum or 750 over 

a 15 year plan period could be assumed.  Four strategic scenarios were identified based on the 

580 dpa figure and three based on 750 dpa, these are set out below:  

 Scenario A - A focus on a New Settlement (580 dpa)  

 Scenario B - A focus on Villages and Bishops Stortford (580 dpa)  

 Scenario C - A focus on the District’s Towns (580 dpa)  

 Scenario D - A ‘hybrid option 1’ which resembled an equal distribution across all of the 

above (580dpa)  

 Scenario E - A focus on two New Settlements (750 dpa)  

Page 64



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
9 
 

 Scenario F - A focus on the District’s Towns and Villages (750dpa)  

 Scenario G - A ‘hybrid option 2’ which resembled an equal distribution across all of the 

above 750 dpa options, with less growth in Bishop’s Stortford. 

3.15 Tables 121 and 122 within Appendix 3 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) more clearly 

set out the distribution and overall level of growth under each of the scenarios and these are 

pasted below. 

 

 

3.16 Outside of the extant permissions and windfall allowance, the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 

2018) does not explain how the levels of growth were derived for each of the component parts 

under the scenarios above.  As a result the Regulation 19 SA Report does not clearly set out an 

outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with.   

3.17 It is our understanding that the call for sites process was ongoing and Strategic Housing Land 

Availability Assessment (SHLAA) was still being prepared.  It would be useful for the reader to 

have an understanding of the assumptions made at this stage to inform the anticipated levels of 

development for the new settlements, main towns and the villages considered under each 

scenario.  For example, why was less growth being considered at Bishop’s Stortford under 

Scenario G.  Providing this information would assist in meeting the regulatory requirement 

(Schedule 2 (8)) to provide ‘an outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with’.  

Page 65



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
10 

 

3.18 Each of the scenarios was subject to a high level appraisal against the SA Objectives.  An initial 

concern is that this appraisal does not appear to identify likely significant effects as required by 

the SEA Regulations; it only highlights constraints and potential issues.  However, this may 

have been because the precise location of development was not known at this stage.  If this is 

the case the SA Report should make it clear that the predicted effects were uncertain at this 

point and would have depended on the precise location of development.  

3.19 A further issue is that a comparative appraisal does not appear to have been carried out; each 

of the scenarios was assessed in an individual table.  A comparative appraisal of the scenarios 

discussing the key differences and ‘trade-offs’ between them would have been more useful in 

terms of informing decision-making.  A summary of the appraisal findings is provided in 

Appendix 3 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018).   

3.20 From a review of the summary appraisal in Appendix 3, it does appear that the scenarios which 

included new settlements were generally considered more favourably or to offer more benefits 

than the other alternatives.  The SA concluded the following at this stage: 

“The appraisals of the scenarios in the report highlighted that no single scenario could be 

guaranteed to meet the current identified and future needs of the District in a wholly sustainable 

manner. It should be acknowledged that a large amount of potentially adverse environmental 

impacts are more accurately a result of the growth targets over the plan period, and that any 

forthcoming options should be developed that seek to minimise these where possible and also 

seek to maximise benefits.   

It was recommended that a suitable balance is sought between meeting existing needs in the 

District as well as future needs. This relates not only to an element of dispersal across the 

District, but also in exploring new settlement options in a way that could meet annual housing 

delivery rates in the latter stages of the plan period. The principle of a new settlement can be 

seen to be a positive one regarding a number of sustainability objectives and it may be possible 

to turn constraints into positive impacts through effective masterplans and a spatial strategy 

that is advanced with awareness of these opportunities.   

It was felt that the scenarios explored at this stage cover all reasonable options regarding the 

broad distribution of growth in the District. The sustainability implications of focusing 

development in any one tier of the settlement hierarchy, including one or more new settlements, 

have been explored fully within this sustainability appraisal. More refined distribution in any 

forthcoming spatial strategy will have been influenced by this sustainability appraisal and in 

response to the highlighted impacts of directing growth to all reasonable broad locations in the 

District”.    

3.21 In order to deliver the benefits identified in relation to new settlements the scale and delivery of 

development is clearly very important.  The assessment often refers to a new settlement 

delivering 10,000 new dwellings; however, the scenarios only identify new settlements as 

delivering a maximum of 3,000 new dwellings.  It is assumed that this is 3,000 dwellings during 

the life of the plan (up to 2033) but it is not made clear.  There is no evidence provided to 

suggest that a new settlement of 3,000 dwellings will be ‘self-contained’ (at least in the short to 

medium term) or be able to deliver significant levels of new services/facilities and infrastructure 

improvements.  

3.22 The precise location of development was not known at this stage and so there would have 

been significant levels of uncertainty as to potential impacts, which the appraisal could make 

clearer.  Furthermore, while new settlements could be less likely to result in cumulative effects 

across the District they are also more likely to have significant effects locally but this is 

dependent on their precise location and the constraints present.   While a new settlement might 

offer greater opportunities for mitigation this would have been uncertain at this stage and 

dependent on the scale of development and the rate of delivery.  Additionally, some of the 

assumptions made for new settlements, such as delivering high quality design, could equally be 

made for alternatives including large urban extensions.   

  

Page 66



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
11 

 

Regulation 18 Preferred Options Local Plan 2016 - 
2017 
3.23 It is understood at this stage that further information was available in terms of site options 

submitted through the call for sites process and considered through the SHLAA.   

Site options 

Garden Communities 
3.24 Appendix 4 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (2018) explains that the Areas of Search (AoS) 

identified in 2015 were translated into Garden Community (GC) options in those instances 

where land within a New Community AoS was submitted through the Council’s call for sites 

process.  We assume that all AoS were considered potentially suitable for development, i.e. 

there was no shortlisting of those AoS as a result of the high level appraisal.  The following 

table is provided in Appendix 4 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) and outlines each 

AoS and indicates whether options for GCs were submitted by promoters. 

Table 2: Garden Community options submitted within the previously explored Areas of 

Search 

New Community Areas of Search Garden Community Suitable land submitted 
for Strategic Growth? 

AoS 1: M11Junction 9a - East Great Chesterford/ North 
Uttlesford 

Yes 

AoS 2: M11Junction 9a - West N/A No 

AoS 3: Elsenham area Elsenham Yes 

AoS 4: M11Junction 8 - North-west Birchanger Yes 

AoS 5: M11Junction 8 - South-east N/A No 

AoS 6: South of A120, North of Hatfield Forest Takeley Yes 

AoS 7: North of A120, West of great Dunmow Easton Park Yes 

AoS 8: South of the A120 N/A No 

AoS 9: West of Braintree West of Braintree Yes 

   

3.25 Appendix 4 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) explains that in addition to the above 

identified options an additional option was submitted for consideration as a new settlement/ GC 

through the call for sites process which we understand was outside a New Settlement AoS.  

This option, south of the A120 and east of Little Dunmow was entitled ‘Chelmer Mead’ within 

the submitted documents and was considered by the Council at the time, “as a notionally 

realistic and deliverable/ developable option at this stage”. 

3.26 An independent SA of the seven GC options was carried out by Place Services and sent to the 

Council in October 2016.  The Regulation 19 SA Report states that this was an ‘informal’ 

appraisal and acknowledges that it was not subject to formal consultation at that time.   

3.27 Appendix 4 states that each of the seven GC options was assessed at this stage based on their 

‘maximum eventual scale as submitted’.  No further details are provided in the explanatory 

narrative in Appendix 4 with regard to the capacity of the GC options at that stage.  This raises 

a series of questions, for example, are the/ were the GC options comparable in terms of 

delivery rates, overall quantum?  Was number of GC options was the Council aiming choose?   

Without all of this information it is not clear if the seven GC options can be considered to be 

genuine, mutually exclusive, alternatives to one another in the spirit of the SEA Regulations.   

3.28 Chapter 8 in the Regulation 19 SA Report (2018) explains that in order for a site to be 

considered a GC it would need to be able to deliver at least 3,000 to 4,000 new dwellings, 

which is the development/ yield threshold that is stated to warrant the provision of a new 

Page 67



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
12 

 

secondary school as per the Essex County Developer’s guide to Infrastructure Contributions 

(Revised Edition 2016) document.  This raises the questions as to whether each of the seven 

GC options considered in 2016 could potentially deliver over 3,000 new dwellings? 

3.29 The capacity issue is complicated further as Section 8.2 in Chapter 8 goes on to state that 

some of the GC options did not meet the threshold identified above, as the land submitted was 

not of a sufficient size to deliver over 3,000 dwellings.   

“Some of the Garden Community options explored do not meet this threshold as land submitted 

is not sufficient. These have been included in this SA however where they form part of the 

areas explored at the initial Areas of Search stage in 2015. This is considered important in 

order to provide the necessary audit trail of the process of Garden Community alternatives 

identification throughout the SA and plan-making processes”. 

3.30 The SA Report does not identify which of the seven GC options fall below the 3,000 dwelling 

threshold identified above.  This is clearly an issue as the reader still does not at this point have 

an understanding of the capacity or the delivery rates of the seven GC options considered in 

2016.  As previously stated, if the scale of development is significantly different can these seven 

site options be considered comparable?  Why weren’t the smaller sites rejected in 2016 as they 

could not accommodate the level of growth required to deliver a new secondary school?  It is 

not until you read through the appraisal of the seven GC options under SA Objective 12 

(Housing) that the capacity of the options becomes clearer. 

3.31 The seven GC options were subject to SA with the findings presented in the Interim Appraisal of 

New Settlement Options SA (Oct 2016); however, it is understood that this work was not 

published at the time or subject to formal consultation.  We understand this appraisal was then 

updated in February 2017 to reflect new evidence and presented within the SA Report that 

accompanied the Regulation 18 Preferred Options Local Plan on consultation in June 2017.  

This updated appraisal is also presented within Chapter 8 of the Regulation 19 SA Report 

(June 2018).  The following comments on the appraisal of the seven GC options are based on 

the revised appraisal presented in Chapter 8 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) rather 

than the original appraisal produced in October 2016.   

3.32 It is clear from a review of the appraisal that it is based on/ relies upon what was being 

proposed by developers at those seven sites at that point in time.  This raises a number of 

concerns, the first of which relates to the fairness and consistency of the appraisal.  Proposals 

for some of the sites may have been more advanced than others at the time, this additional 

information and more detailed mitigation could unintentionally result in bias within the appraisal.  

The appraisal should in the interests of fairness have looked solely at the relative merits of the 

land parcels as future locations for development.   

3.33 The capacity and delivery rates of the sites are not made clear within the appraisal.  Is the 

appraisal only considering the development likely to be delivered during the life of the plan or is 

it taking into account the total capacity of the site?  It is assumed it is the latter given the 

comments in Appendix 4 that state that each of the seven GC options was assessed at this 

stage based on its ‘maximum eventual scale as submitted’. 

3.34 A further concern with the appraisal is that it is difficult for the reader to determine why there are 

differences between some of the GC options in terms of the nature and significance of effects.  

While it is acknowledge that the appraisal and, in particular the judgement as to the significance 

of effects is to some extent a matter of professional opinion, the justification for why there are 

significant differences between options should nonetheless be clear.   

3.35 Some examples are provided below of instances where the same assumptions are not made 

for options or where differences between the nature and significance of effects are not clearly 

explained. 

Page 68



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
13 

 

 

3.36 The narrative provided under SA Objective 1 does not sufficiently explain why there are 

differences between the site options in terms of the nature and significance of effects.  The 

appraisal narrative for Option 1 states that, “the proposal states that Local Wildlife Sites will be 

protected and opportunities sought to enhance them”.  For Option 4 the appraisal states that 

“the area contains numerous LoWSs in and adjacent to the identified site boundary.”  Why 

wasn’t the same approach taken to appraising both options with respect to Local Wildlife Sites, 

ie. that these were present and that development could potentially pose a risk to them if not 

properly masterplanned etc.?  Why also is there less uncertainty for Option 4 against the 

second sub-criteria when the narrative suggests there are similar designations within and close 

to the boundaries of the other options?  Why is Option 6 identified as having the potential for a 

minor positive effect against the second sub-criteria (presence of biodiversity designations) 

when the site is within a SSSI Impact Risk Zone, contains a number of Local Wildlife Sites and 

an area of Ancient Woodland? 

 

3.37 With reference to the table above, all of the options appear to contain or be in close proximity to 

numerous water bodies.  The narrative explains that Option 2 falls within a groundwater Source 

Protection Zone 3, which goes some way to explain why there is less uncertainty in terms of the 

minor negative effect compared to Options 1, 3 and 4.  The narrative does not really justify why 

there is the potential for minor positive effects for Options 5 - 7 against the second criteria and 

negative effects for Options 1, 3 and 4.  The narrative for each option essentially states that the 

size of the sites mean that there is the potential to mitigate any negative impacts.  So why are 

there differences between the options in terms of the nature and significance of effects? 

 

 

3.38 With reference to the table above, the appraisal refers to the proposals submitted by 

developers for some sites/ options and states that mitigation measures have been factored into 

the overall design to minimise impacts on the historic environment.  Why couldn’t this be 

achieved through any of the options?  The approach should ideally be to look at the relative 

merits of each location as a potential location for development without reference to developer 

proposals (as these can change with time) and the appraisal can highlight factors which need 

to be reflected in Local Plan policy (e.g. the avoidance of built development on certain parts of 

sites to safeguard historic environment assets). 

Page 69



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
14 

 

3.39 Furthermore, it is also noted that the scale of development is referred to for some options but 

not for others.  For example, the narrative for Option 4 states that “at 750 dwellings, this is 

unlikely to allow the development to adhere to additional Garden City principles….With this in 

mind, negative impacts have been highlighted for the site’s potential for protection/ 

enhancement of heritage assets”.  Whereas for Option 6 the narrative states that the “scale of 

the proposal is such that these impacts have a reasonable prospect of being mitigated through 

effective masterplanning and through appropriate conditions”.  As the capacity of the options/ 

sites is not clearly set out it is difficult for the reader to understand some of the judgments being 

made. 

 

3.40 As a further example, with reference to the table above, it is not clear why Option 3 is identified 

as having a minor negative/ uncertain effect against the bus sub-criteria compared to other 

options when the narrative states that “there are currently relatively good existing bus links”.  A 

further issue is that Option 4 is identified as have a minor positive effect in terms of bus and rail 

links when the small scale of development (750 dwellings) referred to earlier in the appraisal is 

unlikely to deliver the same improvements as the larger scale development provided through 

other options. 

 

 

3.41 With reference to the table above, it is not clear why Option 6 is identified as having an 

uncertain effect against the second and third sub-criteria when compared to the other options.  

The narrative states that Option 6 is more that 800m from a GP surgery and that no additional 

healthcare provisions are proposed.  Should it not be assumed at this stage that all GC options 

could deliver some form of improvements to existing health care facilities or possibly new 

ones?  A key factor in the delivery of addition healthcare provisions is the scale of development; 

however, the appraisal does not bring this up as a potential issue. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
15 

 

 

 

3.42 With reference to the above table, the capacity of each of the options is finally clarified under 

SA Objective 12, which relates to housing.  The capacity of each option is identified as follows: 

 Option 1 (Easton Park): 10,000 dwellings. 

 Option 2 (North Uttlesford) 5,000 dwellings. 

 Option 3 (West of Braintree) 3,500 dwellings. 

 Option 4 (Takeley) 1,700 dwellings. 

 Option 5 (Elsenham) 4,000 dwellings. 

 Option 6 (Birchanger) 3,500 dwellings. 

 Option 7 (Chelmer Mead) 1,020 dwellings. 

3.43 Clearly these options are not comparable in terms of overall quantum, although they might all 

be able to deliver a similar level of growth during the plan period.  In the longer-term would the 

effects differ significantly against the SA objectives? 

 

3.44 With reference to the table above, Option 6 is identified as having a major negative effect as the 

proposal for the site at that time did not propose any new schools.  This particular example 

demonstrates the weakness of relying on current proposals being put forward by developers as 

the basis for appraisal and that it can unintentionally result in bias through the appraisal.  With a 

capacity of 3,500 dwellings, it should have been assumed that Option 6 could also deliver a 

new school.   

3.45 The issues identified above raise concerns as to how the comparative appraisal of GC options 

informed their selection/ rejection as well as the development of spatial strategy options/ 

scenarios.  Three of the options were identified as the preferred GC sites - West of Braintree, 

Easton Park and North Uttlesford/ Great Chesterford.  Outline reasons for selection/ rejection 

are provided in Appendix 6 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018).  The issues identified 

above in relation to the appraisal raises the question if the reasons for selection/ rejection are 

still valid?   

Urban extensions 
3.46 Following the AoS work in 2015 it appears that the expansion of Saffron Walden, Great 

Dunmow and Bishop’s Stortford through urban extensions was carried forward as a 

consideration in the development of strategic scenarios.  The Regulation 19 SA Report (June 

2018) does not explain if any sites came forward through the call for sites process within the 

Page 71



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
16 

 

identified AoS.  If no sites came forward within these areas then why is this option carried 

forward and represented within the strategic scenarios?  If sites did come forward this raises 

the question of why a comparative appraisal of these options not carried out, as was done for 

the GC options? 

3.47 It is noted that Appendix 2 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) sets out the 

identification and appraisal of non-strategic sites.  It is assumed that this Appendix does not 

also include any sites that could be considered a ‘strategic urban extension’. 

Non-strategic site options 
3.48 Appendix 2 of the Regulation 19 SA Report sets out how non-strategic site options were 

considered through plan-making and the SA process.  It states that the primary means of 

identifying realistic site options for consideration through the SA process was through the 

Strategic Land Availability Assessment (SLAA) previously referred to as the SHLAA.  This is an 

appropriate approach as the SLAA process will help to filter the long list of site options identified 

through the call for sites, so that only the deliverable sites are taken forward for further 

consideration.   

3.49 Appendix 2 explains that the SLAA assesses each site option to determine if it is ‘Suitable’, 

‘Available’ and ‘Achievable’.  Once this has been done it then classifies each site from ‘A to E’.  

‘A’ meaning that the site has planning permission and is generally considered to be deliverable 

within the first five years of the plan period and ‘E meaning that the site is “not considered 

developable and delivery is not considered suitable within 15 years or more”.   

3.50 Following the explanation of the SLAA process and the A-E categories, Appendix 2 then sets 

out the reasons why some sites were excluded from the SA process.  These are as follows: 

 “The position of the settlement within the Settlement Hierarchy.  Housing sites that are not 

within existing development boundaries/ envelopes or are not adjoining existing 

development boundaries (the Countryside as defined within the Plan) have not been 

considered unless they represent new settlement/ Garden Community options.  These 

sites have been identified as representing development in unsustainable locations / would 

not contribute to sustainable patterns of development.  

 The yield or size of the site is too small to allocate in a strategic plan (these sites can be 

considered more of a Development Management/ Control matter).  The threshold has 

been set at under 10 dwellings.  These sites are classified as windfall sites within the Plan, 

and have not been identified for specific allocation.   

 Sites that have been identified as unachievable or undeliverable/ undevelopable in the 

SLAA. These cannot be considered reasonable options for allocation.   

 Sites within the Metropolitan Green Belt have not been included within this SA.  This is 

following the Green Belt Review 2018, forming part of the Council’s Local Plan evidence 

base, which has determined which parcels of land within the Green Belt have a strong 

value in meeting the purposes of the Green Belt.  

 Additionally, those sites submitted that are not within or adjacent/ bordering Development 

Limits have not been included within the SA.  These sites fall within ‘Classification E’ of the 

Council’s SLAA and can be seen to respond to unsustainable patterns of development. 

This judgement does not include those sites that have been submitted or otherwise 

identified as new settlements/ Garden Communities which have been explored separately 

within this SA.  

 Sites for which the proposal submitted has been refused planning permission have also 

been omitted from consideration within this SA”.  

3.51 An initial observation is that it would be helpful to more clearly set out the classification of SLAA 

sites that have not been carried forward for consideration through the SA process.  It is noted 

that classification ‘E’ is referred to but have classification ‘D’ sites been progressed or do they 

fall under the third bullet point above? 

Page 72



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
17 

 

3.52 The reasons outlined also raise further questions, for example, did the GB assessment find that 

there are no parcels suitable for removal if none are carried forward for consideration through 

the SA? 

3.53 A concern with regard to the identification of non-strategic sites is that Appendix 2 does not 

clearly set out the thresholds used by the Council to determine if a site is either considered to 

be strategic or non-strategic site through plan-making and the SA process.  It is clear from the 

tables (91, 93, 95, 97, 99, 101, 103, 105, 107, 109, 113, 116 and 118) setting out the site 

options for each settlement that there is a significant difference in the capacity of some of the 

site options.  For example, Table 91 sets out the site options in Saffron Walden and the capacity 

them ranges from 8 to 450 dwellings.  A further question is why are two sites with a capacity of 

8 dwellings being considered when the introductory section of Appendix 2 states that any sites 

with the capacity to deliver under 10 dwellings would be rejected and not considered further? 

3.54 It is noted that mixed use and employment sites are separated out from the residential site 

options in Appendix 2.  Were mixed use and employment sites also considered through the 

SLAA in the same way as the residential sites?  How did the Council determine which 

submitted employment site options should be rejected and which should be progressed for 

further consideration through the SA process?  Furthermore how did the Council determine 

what would be considered a strategic and non-strategic employment site option? 

3.55 Appendix 2 explains that the appraisal tables include a number of sustainability objectives and 

sub-criteria.  The sub-criteria are then set out and numbered within a table.  An immediate 

concern is that the table does not clearly set out the thresholds or distances used to inform the 

judgement as to the nature and significance of the effect.  It appears that the thresholds are set 

out in the SA Scoping Report (2015) but there are no references made to this within Appendix 

2.   

3.56 No assumptions or limitations vis-à-vis the approach are set out and, as no appraisal narrative 

is provided, it makes it extremely difficult to understand why a site option has been ‘scored’ in a 

particular way against the sub-criteria and why there are significant differences between some 

of the site options. 

3.57 The use of symbols, such as ‘+’ and ‘-‘, suggests that the appraisal of non-strategic site options 

is endeavouring to indicate the nature and significance of effects of site options against the SA 

sub-criteria.  If distance thresholds are being used to inform these judgements then this needs 

to be clearly stated as distance in itself is not a definitive guide to the likelihood of or 

significance of effects.   

3.58 Given the lack of explanation in terms of the method as well as uncertainties around the sub-

criteria and a lack of appraisal narrative, it is difficult to provide any further comments on the 

appraisal of non-strategic sites.  It also brings into question the issue of how the appraisal 

informed the selection of allocations and in turn the development of spatial strategy options.  

Outline reasons for the rejection or selection of each non-strategic site option are presented in 

Appendix 6 of the Regulation 19 SA Report. 

Garden Community scenarios 

3.59 It is our understanding that the findings of the appraisal of the seven GC options (Oct 2016) 

informed the production of a Reasonable Alternatives Identification Note (December 2016).  

This note was prepared by an independent consultant (Troy Planning) to explore what could be 

considered reasonable in meeting OAHN based on some assumptions regarding start dates 

and delivery rates of GCs.   

3.60 The note recommended that two of the site options for a new settlement should not be 

considered further in plan-making for a number of reasons.  The Elsenham and Birchanger 

sites were therefore rejected as GC options and Appendix 4 of the Regulation 19 SA Report 

(June 2018) provides a summary of these reasons and explains that the Council considers that 

these reasons are still valid.  It is not made clear within the SA Report (2018) or Appendix 4 if 

the Reasonable Alternative Identification Note (Dec 2016) was published at the time or subject 

to any form of consultation. 

Page 73



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
18 

 

3.61 For the remaining five GC options the note identified indicative capacities, which are provided 

below. 

 

3.62 It is assumed that the best case indicative capacity refers to the total amount of development 

that could be delivered during the life of the plan.  This is not explained within the Regulation 19 

SA Report (June 2018).  It is also not explained why the c. 50% capacity was decided 

appropriate for the alternative case (was it simply a question of being cautious with regards 

development trajectories?). 

3.63 Based on the best and alternative case indicative capacities for the five GC options, the note 

identified eleven ‘scenarios’ that explored different combinations of the five GC options.  The 

purpose of these scenarios was to explore what combinations of GC options could help to meet 

the OAN of around 14,000 new homes.  The SA Report would benefit from more clearly 

explaining the housing need and supply situation at this stage. 

3.64 Appendix 1 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) states that a twelfth scenario was also 

developed that did not meet OAHN and was included for comparison purposes only and should 

therefore not be considered as a reasonable alternative.  It also states that scenario five was 

removed due to viability concerns around an option that explored less than the full proposal at 

Great Chesterford.  It is noted that the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not explain 

this viability issue in any further detail; however, it does direct the reader to the Reasonable 

Alternatives Identification Note for further information.  Following a brief review of an updated 

version of this note dated April 2017, it does not appear to explain the viability issue relating to 

this site. 

3.65 The twelve scenarios identified are presented below. 

Page 74



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
19 

 

 

 

3.66 A significant concern at this stage is that the Reg 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not explain 

why scenarios were only explored for the delivery of three new GCs.  It is assumed that this 

was because they would only be able to deliver a proportion of their total capacity during the life 

of the plan, but this is not clearly explained.  It is noted that Table 9 in Chapter 5 and Appendix 

6 briefly mention that an assumption was made that GC options would each only be able to 

deliver 1,400 dwellings during the life of the plan; however, this is not consistent with what was 

set out in terms of indicative capacities identified in the Reasonable Alternatives Identification 

Note (December 2016) and referred to earlier. 

3.67 This issue is further confused by the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) not clearly 

explaining the housing land supply situation at that time as well as not clearly setting out what, 

if any, strategic scale sites came forward around the main towns through the SLAA process.  

This is discussed further under the District-wide alternatives heading later in this section.   

3.68 A high level appraisal was carried out for each of the scenarios and the findings are presented 

in Appendix 1 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018).  Similar to the previous comments 

made in relation to the appraisal of the seven GC options, the narrative does not always 

provide a clear justification for the predicted nature and significance of effects or the differences 

between the GC scenarios.   For example, under SA Objective 1 (Biodiversity), Options 2 and 4 

are identified as having the potential for a major positive effect and the narrative seeks to justify 

this by stating that they are the most positive in terms of the minimisation of impacts on existing 

designations.  However, when you refer back to the appraisal for the individual GC options, two 

of sites that make up those Options were identified as have the potential for a minor negative 

effect on biodiversity with some uncertainty. 

3.69 Another example is under SA Objective 3 (Landscape), where Options 1 and 2 are identified as 

having the potential for a minor positive effect.  The narrative states that, “comparative positive 

Page 75



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
20 

 

impacts have been highlighted for Options 1, 2 and 12 due offering the best comparable 

distribution of those options that meet the District’s OAN, with no cumulative impacts that can 

be expected”.  However, when you refer back to the appraisal for the individual GC options, the 

North Uttlesford option (also referred to as Great Chesterford) is identified as having the 

potential for a significant negative effect as the landscape has a relatively high sensitivity to 

change and development could result in coalescence with Great Chesterford.   

3.70 A final example is under SA Objective 12 (Housing), where Option 6 is identified as having the 

potential for a minor negative effect when it proposes the same level of overall growth and 

similar scale of new settlements to Option 5 which has the potential for a minor positive effect.  

The reason for this difference is not explained within the narrative.   

3.71 The SA Report does not provide any clear explanation as to how this work then fed into the 

development of spatial strategy options.  Was this work completed prior to the selection and 

rejection of the individual GC options referred to earlier?  If it was completed after then why 

were scenarios developed that included rejected GC options?  

3.72 Appendix 6 presents the outline reasons for selection/ rejection and identified Option 1 as the 

preferred scenario for the following reasons: 

“Although the quanta within the Plan has progressed to more accurately reflect expected build 

out rates and requirements within the Plan period, this option most closely reflects the preferred 

combination of Easton Park (1,925), North Uttlesford (1,925) and West of Braintree (970). This 

combination has been selected as it ensures the merits of spatial distribution across the 

District, with good links to centres of economic growth and employment opportunities, existing 

services and also good connectivity to strategic roads and nearby rail links”. 

3.73 This suggests that options that related to focusing growth at urban extensions around the main 

towns and villages have been rejected; however, this is not clearly explained. 

District-wide alternatives 

3.74 The Regulation 19 SA Report (2018) explains that at this stage, new evidence emerged that 

suggested that the District’s OAHN was 14,100 over the plan period, which equated to 641 

dwellings per annum 2011-2033.  In terms of housing land supply at that stage, a total of 8,171 

new homes were identified as dwellings which had already been built (2,468), had planning 

permission at April 2016 (4,513) or were included in a windfall allowance of 70 dwellings a year 

(1,190).  As a result of this, the Plan at that stage had to identify land for a total of 5,929 new 

dwellings.   

3.75 As a result of the updated evidence, the Council explored if any of the previously identified 

strategic scenarios in 2015 (see Paragraphs 3.11 to 3.23 in this report) could be considered to 

be a reasonable alternative at this stage in plan-making.   

Page 76



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
21 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
22 

 

3.76 The following narrative was provided in Chapter 5 of the Regulation 18 SA Report (June 2017) 

as well as a slightly modified version in Chapter 5 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018): 

“At this current Preferred Options stage, few options and alternatives can be identified as 

‘reasonable’ and are required to be explored. This takes into account existing commitments, 

dwellings built (2011-16) and those with outstanding planning permissions at 1st April 2016. 

These correspond to development within the District’s main towns and key and other villages 

and can be seen to contribute to Policy SP2’s distribution pattern.    

With further considerations given to the findings of the SHLAA and the plan’s corresponding 

non-strategic site allocations, which are also in accordance with the distribution proposed in 

Policies SP2 and SP3, there emerges a need for three new settlements, or ‘Garden 

Communities’ within the District, forming a significant part of the Plan’s proposed Spatial 

Strategy. This is identified through a current forecast ‘shortfall’ of 4,673 dwellings that need to 

be allocated within the plan period in addition to those that are identified for allocation in the 

Plan within the District’s towns and key villages. Therefore, the only reasonable Spatial 

Strategy options that exist at this current stage are different permutations of three New 

Settlement or ‘Garden Community’ options (in consideration of the aforementioned 

assumptions regarding New Settlement / Garden Community start dates and delivery rates 

within the plan period)”. 

3.77 The narrative around decision-making at this stage is very difficult to follow.  It is not clear why 

the preferred approach was selected in light of alternatives, such as focussing development at 

urban extensions around the main towns and proportionate distribution at the various villages.  

It is not clear why there is a ‘need’ for three new GCs based on the findings of the previous 

work, in particular the appraisal of the seven GC options and strategic scenarios developed in 

2015.   

3.78 In 2015 none of the identified scenarios were considered able to meet the current and future 

needs in a sustainable way.  This raises the question of why the strategic scenarios were not 

refined at this stage so that they could meet the identified OAHN and reflect new evidence from 

the SLAA?  Having updated tables such as those presented in the Issues and Options SA 

Report (2015) and earlier in this section, would help to make the District-wide choices for 

meeting needs much clearer. 

3.79 A major concern with this stage is that the quanta and distribution of housing is being 

considered separately in Chapter 5 under Policies SP2 and SP3.  As a result, the SA process is 

identifying alternatives that are not reasonable as they cannot meet the objectives of the Local 

Plan in line with the SEA Regulations.  A key objective of the Local Plan is to meet housing 

needs, i.e. to establish a spatial strategy to meet those identified needs.  This cannot be 

achieved if the broad distribution of growth is considered in isolation from the quanta and vice 

versa.  This is a fundamental flaw in the SA process at this stage. 

  

Page 78



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
23 

 

Regulation 19 Local Plan 2018 

Site options 

3.80 The SA Report does not suggest that any further work was carried out in relation to strategic or 

non-strategic sites at this stage.  It is not clear if amendments were made to the appraisal of 

GC options or non-strategic sites as a result of new evidence or if any new sites were being 

considered. 

Garden Community scenarios 

3.81 Appendix 1 of the Regulation 19 SA Report states that four additional ‘scenarios’ were 

developed following the Regulation 18 Consultation in June 2017 to explore the possibility that 

the West of Braintree GC option might not come forward (see table below).  This reflected that 

the fact that the NEA  Strategic One Local Plans were at Examination and not formally adopted, 

which could mean that the West of Braintree GC might not come forward as an allocation in the 

Braintree Section One Local Plan. 

3.82 It is noted that the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) and Appendices do not really discuss 

the Duty to Cooperate (DtC) process with surrounding Local Authorities, in particular with 

Braintree District Council in respect of the West of Braintree GC. 

 

 

3.83 As per the previous stage, it is noted that scenarios are still only being explored for the delivery 

of three new GCs.  The Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not clearly explain how this 

decision was made in light of alternatives.  

3.84 The appraisal of the twelve scenarios produced in 2017 was then updated to include the 

appraisal of the four additional scenarios set out above.  The findings of this work are presented 

in Appendix 1 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018).  The concerns raised earlier in 

relation to this appraisal are still valid, i.e. the narrative does always provide a clear justification 

for the nature and significance of effects identified as well as the differences between the GC 

scenarios.   

District-wide alternatives 

3.85 As in the Regulation 18 SA Report (June 2017), Chapter 5 in the Regulation 19 SA Report 

(June 2018) states that the strategic scenarios identified in 2015 cannot be considered 

reasonable alternatives at this stage, primarily because they would not provide sufficient land to 

meet OAHN. 

3.86 It is assumed that the OAHN at this stage is still 14,100 dwellings or 641 dpa over the plan 

period.  Chapter 5 states that at this stage in plan-making, “few options and alternatives can be 

identified as ‘reasonable’ and are required to be re-explored”.  It is suggested that this is 

because of existing commitments.  The Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) explains that at 

1st April 2017, a further 3,939 dwellings had been granted planning permission.  Historical 

evidence shows that windfall sites make a contribution to the number of annual completions; it 

Page 79



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
24 

 

is forecast that in the light of available sites and planning policy, windfall sites will continue to be 

permitted and built in the future at a rate of 70 dpa.  This equates to a total windfall allowance 

between 2017 and 2033 of 1,120 dwellings.  The total land housing land supply is therefore 

8,249 dwellings.  It is suggested in Chapter 5 that this leaves a shortfall of 4,820 dwellings in 

order to meet OAHN; however, this appears to be lower than the number of dwellings when you 

subtract existing commitments/ windfall from the OAHN figure of 14,100 dwellings. 

3.87 Chapter 5 states that, “with further considerations given to the findings of the SLAA and the 

plan’s corresponding non-strategic site allocations, which are also in accordance with the 

distribution proposed in Policies SP2 and SP3, there emerges a need for three new 

settlements, or ‘Garden Communities’ within the District, forming a significant part of the Plan’s 

proposed Spatial Strategy”. 

3.88 As mentioned earlier, the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not explain why there is a 

‘need’ for three new GCs.  This narrative around decision-making at this stage is very difficult to 

follow.  It is not clear why the preferred approach was selected in light of alternatives, such as 

focusing development at urban extensions around the main towns and proportionate 

distribution at the various villages.   

3.89 Unlike the previous Regulation 18 stage, at this stage in plan-making, some additional spatial 

strategy alternatives were identified.  Four broad spatial strategy alternatives are identified in 

Chapter 5 and described as being simplifications of the strategic scenarios explored at the 

Issues and Options stage in 2015. 

 Alternative SP2(a): All development in new settlements;  

 Alternative SP2(b): All development pepper potted in villages;  

 Alternative SP2(c): All development in two main towns (Saffron Walden and Great 

Dunmow); and  

 Alternative SP2(d): A combination of development in main towns and villages. 

3.90 Given what was said in paragraph 3.72 above, in particular about GCs, it is not clear why these 

options were even considered.  The quantum of growth to be delivered through the options is 

also not clear; would they all help to deliver the identified shortfall?  It is not clear why additional 

hybrid options were not explored, i.e. options that explore the potential for greater levels of 

development at certain settlements or villages based on the SLAA alongside the delivery of 

new GCs.  At this stage we assume that the SLAA demonstrates that there are not enough 

deliverable and available sites to meet identified needs by focusing development just to the 

villages or solely at the main towns.  This needs to be clearly explained within the SA Report.   

Based on what is available it is not clear why these options are even being explored at this 

stage when they are not reasonable.    

3.91 As a result of this, a major concern in relation to this stage is that the SA Report does not 

present stakeholders and the public with a clear and genuine choice of how to deliver the 

identified needs of the District.  At the Regulation 19 stage we would expect to see some clear 

and mutually exclusive alternatives that could deliver the identified shortfall as well as some 

options to explore the potential for a higher level of growth where possible (in order to provide a 

buffer or contingency for example).  There is no need to explore options that do not deliver the 

OAHN unless there are significant constraints that restrict development. 

3.92 Part of the problem is that the key questions relating to how much development there should be 

and how this should be distributed are dealt with separately through the SA process under 

Policies SP2 and SP3.  These issues should be considered together and informed by the wider 

evidence, in particular the SLAA work, to identify reasonable spatial strategy options to deliver 

the identified needs. 

3.93 The preferred approach (Policy SP2) and each of the four broad spatial strategy options 

identified above were appraised against the SA Objectives with the findings presented in 

Chapter 5 of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018).  While the appraisal narrative for the 

alternatives refers to the preferred strategy (i.e. Policy SP2) on Pgs. 54 to 56, the appraisal of 

the preferred strategy itself is presented four pages earlier on Pg. 50.  It is therefore not easy to 

compare the appraisals.    

Page 80



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
25 

 

3.94 As per the previous comments on the various appraisals, the appraisal of the four options is 

very high level and the narrative does not clearly justify all the differences between the options.  

At first glance it is clear that the preferred strategy (Policy SP2) performs significantly better 

against the SA Objectives when compared to the alternatives.  This instantly raises a concern 

that the alternatives are not reasonable in the first place and therefore do not offer a genuine 

choice or alternative in terms of meeting identified needs.   

3.95 It is noted that the appraisal of the preferred strategy is very positive in terms of the delivery of 

the new GCs in the latter stages of the plan period.  However, it is understood that only a 

proportion of the total development will be delivered during the life of the plan; therefore, will 

these significant positive effects be realised during this plan period or beyond?  It is difficult to 

provide any further meaningful comments on the appraisal as it appears the alternatives are not 

reasonable and so will always perform poorly compared to the preferred strategy.  It is also not 

clear what the precise location or quantum of development is under these options.   

3.96 It’s surprising that the appraisal finds that every option will have a neutral effect on SA 

Objectives 1 (Biodiversity), 2 (Water Framework Directive), 6 (Climate Change), 7 (Pollution) 

and 8 (Flooding).  Based on our experience the appraisal should be able to highlight some 

differences between options that explore the distribution of development against SA Objectives 

relating to these topics. 

3.97 Alternatives for the level of growth are currently explored under Policy SP3, including a higher 

level of growth based on the Government’s standard housing methodology.  However, how can 

these options be justified or meaningful if they are not clearly linked to the evidence, in 

particular the site options identified through the SLAA?  Why are options that deliver below the 

OAHN being explored? 

3.98 It is again difficult to provide meaningful comments on the appraisal as the majority of them do 

not appear reasonable and will therefore perform poorly against the SA Objectives compared to 

the preferred option. 

3.99 As identified for the previous stage, a major concern is that the quanta and distribution of 

housing is being considered separately in Chapter 5 under Policies SP2 and SP3.  As a result, 

the SA process is identifying and appraising alternatives that are not reasonable as they cannot 

meet the objectives of the Local Plan in line with the SEA Regulations.  A key objective of the 

Local Plan is to meet housing needs, i.e. to establish a spatial strategy to meet those identified 

needs.  This cannot be achieved if the broad distribution of growth is considered in isolation 

from the quanta and vice versa.  This is a fundamental flaw in the SA process at this stage. 

 

  

Page 81



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
26 

 

4. Inspector’s and stakeholder 
comments 

Introduction 
4.1 This chapter brings together the findings from the regulatory and substantive review and seeks 

to answer the following questions: 

1. To what extent are the criticisms of the SA for the NEA Strategic Section One Local Plan 

raised by the Inspector examining that plan, applicable to the SA for the Uttlesford Local 

Plan?; and 

2. To what degree are the criticism raised by stakeholders valid? 

NEA Inspector’s concerns 
4.2 The Inspector’s Post-Hearing Letter (June 2018) published during the Examination for the 

North Essex Authorities (NEA) Local Plans (Strategic Section 1), identified three principal 

shortcomings in the SA process.  These are: 

1. Objectivity of the assessment of the chosen spatial strategy and the alternatives to it; 

2. The clarity of the descriptions of those spatial strategy alternatives and the reasons for 

selecting them; and 

3. The selection of Garden Communities (GC) and GCs for assessment. 

4.3 Given the findings of the substantive review in Chapter 3, it is considered that each of the 

shortcomings identified in the Inspector’s Post-Hearing Letter are applicable to the SA process 

for the Uttlesford Local Plan in some way. 

4.4 The Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not clearly explain how alternatives were 

identified at each stage nor does it clearly set out what they entail.  The assumptions made and 

the evidence underlying them is not clearly set out.  This includes the identified level of need, 

housing land supply and the capacity/ delivery rate of site options.   

4.5 It is not clear why there is a need for three new GCs in light of the alternatives.  There are also 

concerns around the objectivity of the appraisal of these GC options, which relies heavily on 

what was being proposed by the promoters of the sites in 2016/ 2017.  It is not clear if the SA is 

just taking into account development at the GCs during the life of the plan or the total capacity 

of the sites beyond the plan period. 

4.6 The quanta and distribution of housing is being considered separately through the SA process 

in terms of alternatives.  As a result, the SA process is identifying and appraising alternatives 

that are not reasonable as they cannot meet the objectives of the Local Plan in line with the 

SEA Regulations.  A key objective of the Local Plan is to meet housing needs, i.e. to establish a 

spatial strategy to meet those identified needs.  This cannot be achieved if the broad 

distribution of growth is considered in isolation from the quanta and vice versa.   

4.7 As a result of the above, it is not clear why the preferred approach has been selected in light of 

alternatives.   

Regulation 19 comments 
4.8 The Council received an extensive number of representations on the Local Plan and the 

accompanying SA Report through the Regulation 19 consultation.  A number of these directly 

objected to or criticised the SA Report.  A brief summary of these comments are provided 

below:  

Page 82



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
27 

 

 The spatial strategy has taken little to no account of the possible sustainable opportunities 

for residential development on the edge of Bishop's Stortford. 

 The SA only appears to consider the likely significant effects of development at the GCs 

during the life of the plan.  It should consider the full capacity of the GCs and potential 

effects. 

 A number of the scenarios/ spatial strategy options do not represent a reasonable 

alternative for delivering growth as they exclude the main towns within the District. 

 The SA should explore more alternatives to the stepped trajectory to housing delivery 

proposed through Policy SP3.  

 The SA of the GC options has not been undertaken in a fair and consistent manner. 

 Non-strategic sites should not be rejected for consideration through the SA process 

because planning permission was refused and dismissed at appeal. 

 The SA fails to justify the choices made and it has not been demonstrated that the chosen 

spatial strategy is the most appropriate one when considered against the reasonable 

alternatives. 

 The SA makes optimistic assumptions about the benefits of GCs, and correspondingly 

negative assumptions about the alternatives, without evidence to support many of those 

assumptions. 

 The narrative around the spatial strategy is not clear. 

 It is not clear why three GCs are needed. 

4.9 The majority of the concerns raised above through the representations have also been 

identified in some form within the regulatory and substantive reviews in Chapters 2 and 3.  

However, one of the comments is not really touched upon and this relates to the rejection of 

non-strategic sites because planning permission was refused and dismissed at appeal. 

4.10 There are various reasons as to why permission might be refused and then dismissed at 

appeal.  It’s possible that permission was refused because of a fundamental constraint or as a 

result of a technicality.  If the latter, we would suggest that there needs to be an element of 

professional judgment used to determine if the site may be suitable for consideration through 

the SA process.    

 

 

 

 
  

Page 83



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
28 

 

5. Conclusions and recommendations 

Introduction 
5.1 This Chapter briefly summarises the key conclusions and then sets out a number of suggested 

recommendations to address the issues identified. 

Conclusions 
5.2 The regulatory and substantive reviews of the Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) identified a 

number of significant concerns and potential areas of risk in terms of legal challenge.   

5.3 The primary issue and also the area of greatest risk in terms of legal challenge is that the 

Regulation 19 SA Report (June 2018) does not clearly identify, describe and evaluate the likely 

significant effects of reasonable alternatives; nor does it clearly set out the reasons for choosing 

the preferred spatial strategy in light of them.   

5.4 A primary reason for this is that the quanta and distribution of housing is considered separately 

through the SA process.  As a result, the SA Report identifies and appraises alternatives that 

are not reasonable as they cannot meet the objectives of the Local Plan in line with the SEA 

Regulations.  A key objective of the Local Plan is to meet housing needs, i.e. to establish a 

spatial strategy to meet those identified needs.  This cannot be achieved if the broad 

distribution of growth is considered in isolation from the quanta and vice versa.   

5.5 As a consequence of the above, statutory consultees and the wider public were not presented 

at the Regulation 19 stage with genuine, mutually exclusive, reasonable alternatives to the 

preferred spatial strategy in terms of how to meet the identified needs of the District. 

5.6 While it is acknowledged that a range of different alternatives were explored and appraised at 

each stage in plan-making and the SA process, the SA Report does not clearly explain how 

they were developed or clearly set out what they entailed.  Concerns were also raised in 

relation to the various appraisals in terms of their objectivity and then how they informed the 

development of reasonable alternatives.  However, these issues may have been as a result of 

not having clearly defined and reasonable alternatives to appraise in the first place.   

5.7 The cognisance of the narrative is not helped by the length and structure of the Regulation 19 

SA Report.  Alternatives are dealt with within Chapter 5 alongside Draft Plan policies as well as 

in Chapter 8 and Appendices 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6.  For example, to gain an understanding of how 

Garden Communities were considered through plan-making and the SA the reader needs to 

refer to Chapters 5 and 8 as well as Appendices 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6.   The reader is also directed to 

other evidence documents, which then necessitates a paper chase between various Chapters/ 

Appendices and wider evidence. 

Recommendations 
5.8 There are a number of recommendations to arise as a result of the regulatory and substantive 

reviews.  These recommendations are listed below and then followed by a series of options 

with varying levels of risk and resources required. 

5.9 If all the suggested recommendations are taken forward then these should address the 

concerns raised in the Inspector’s Post-Hearing Letter (June 2018) published during the 

Examination for the NEA Local Plans (Strategic Section One) as well as the majority of 

representations raising concerns through the Regulation 19 consultation. 

5.10 The main recommendations are as follows: 

1. Include the objectives of the Local Plan within the initial Chapters of the SA Report.  This is 

important as in line with the SEA Regulations the reasonable alternatives should be 

developed taking into account the objectives of the Local Plan.  

Page 84



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
29 

 

2. Ensure the NTS includes all the information required in Schedule 2 of the SEA 

Regulations.  In particular, provide further information on how reasonable alternatives were 

developed and appraised for the spatial strategy and set out the reasons why the preferred 

approach was selected in light of those alternatives.  Suggest the scoping information in 

the NTS is condensed as it takes 21 pages to reach the first appraisal findings.  

3. Consolidate and revise the narrative explaining how reasonable alternatives have been 

addressed through plan-making and the SA process, in particular for the spatial strategy.  

Set out this narrative chronologically and ensure that all the key information available at 

that time and the assumptions made are concisely set out.  For example, just have one 

Appendix relating to the development and refinement of the spatial strategy, include 

relevant information relating to the GCs within this and explain how it fed into and informed 

the development of District-wide alternatives.  

4. Following on from the recommendation above, it would be helpful to make the appraisal of 

the Draft Plan more distinct from the consideration of alternatives, which are both 

presented in Chapter 5.  A separate Chapter or Appendix could be provided that deals with 

the alternatives for all other policies/issues that do not relate to the spatial strategy.   

5. Clearly set out the thresholds for each SA sub-criteria used to appraise non-strategic sites 

in Appendix 2.   

6. Undertake a fresh, objective and comparative appraisal of GC options based on a range of 

different sizes as well as on the merits of the sites, not what is being promoted by 

developers.  Clearly set out any assumptions as well as the capacity of the sites in terms 

of what can be delivered during the life of the plan and in total.  The same should process 

should be carried out for any strategic urban extensions that came forward through the 

SLAA process. 

7. Identify reasonable alternatives to deliver identified needs and subject them to an objective 

and comparative appraisal alongside the preferred spatial strategy.  Use available 

evidence, in particular the SLAA, and the findings of the appraisal work through 

recommendation 6 to identify realistic spatial strategy options that can deliver identified 

needs.  Clearly set out the assumptions used to develop them and the quanta of growth to 

be directed to various components under each option.  If an option cannot meet the OAHN 

then it should not be considered.  The reasons for selecting the preferred approach in light 

of alternatives should be clearly set out. 

5.11 The Council has a number of options available to them in terms of how they take account of the 

findings of this independent review and progress with the SA process.  Three potential options 

are set out below and would result in different levels of resources required and risk. 

Option 1 - Low resource/ high risk 
5.12 This option relies on the SA work undertaken to date and seeks to improve the narrative 

dealing with alternatives within the SA Report as well as addressing some gaps/ non-

compliance issues highlighted through this review.  It would involve carrying out 

recommendations 1 to 5 and then submitting the revised SA Report and NTS alongside the 

submission version of the Local Plan.  While this will involve less resources and time it also 

comes with the highest level of risk.  The identified issues in relation to the appraisals and 

around reasonable spatial strategy alternatives will still exist. 

Option 2 - Moderate resource/ moderate risk 
5.13 This option involves undertaking further SA work to address the identified issues around the 

appraisal and the development of reasonable alternatives.  It would involve carrying out all of 

the recommendations and then submitting the revised SA Report and NTS alongside the 

submission version of the Local Plan.  The key risk for this option is that it could be argued that 

the statutory consultees and the public were not given an opportunity to provide comments on 

the revised SA work, in particular the new spatial strategy options to deliver identified needs.   

Page 85



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
30 

 

 

Options 3 - Higher resource/ low risk 
5.14 This option involves undertaking further SA work to address the identified issues around the 

appraisal and the development of reasonable alternatives.  It would involve carrying out all of 

the recommendations and then publishing the revised SA Report and NTS alongside the Local 

Plan for a further Regulation 19 consultation.  This option has the least risk in terms of legal 

challenge. 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
31 

 

Appendix I: Regulatory requirements 

Regulatory requirement
3
  Discussion  RAG 

score 
Mitigation/ Recommendation 

Regulation 12 - Preparation of the SA Report   

(2) The report shall identify, describe and 
evaluate the likely significant effects on the 
environment of –  

a) implementing the plan or programme; 
and  

b) reasonable alternatives taking into 
account the objectives and the 
geographical scope of the plan or 
programme. 

One of the key objectives of the Local Plan is to meet the needs for new 
homes.  In trying to identify alternatives for delivering the identified need, 
the SA process considers the quanta and distribution of housing 
separately.  However, quanta and distribution are inextricably linked and 
stakeholders should ideally be presented with a series of alternative 
spatial strategy options that vary in terms of both quanta and distribution.  
As a result of the approach above, alternatives were not developed 
taking into account the objectives of the Local Plan.  This resulted in the 
majority of alternatives for the distribution and quanta of housing growth 
under Policies SP2 and SP3 being either not reasonable or performing 
significantly worse against the SA Framework compared to the preferred 
approach.  

 See Chapter 5 in the main report for 
recommendations. 

(3) The report shall include such of the 
information referred to in Schedule 2 to these 
Regulations as may reasonably be required, 
taking account of - 

See findings of the review under Schedule 2, later in this table.  See recommendations of the review under 
Schedule 2, later in this table. 

(5) When deciding on the scope and level of 
detail of the information that must be included in 
the report, the responsible authority shall consult 
the consultation bodies. 

The Scoping Report was sent to statutory consultees for review and 
comment in July 2015. 

 N/A 

Regulation 13 - Consultation procedures 

13.-(1) Every draft plan or programme for which 
an environmental report has been prepared in 
accordance with regulation 12 and its 
accompanying environmental report (“the 
relevant documents”) shall be made available 
for the purposes of consultation in accordance 
with the following provisions of this regulation. 

The SA report was published alongside the Regulation 19 Local Plan for 
consultation.  However, given the concerns identified in relation to 
reasonable alternatives, it could be argued that this consultation was not 
effective.   

 See Chapter 5 in the main report for 
recommendations. 

                                                                                                           
3
 The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004. 

P
age 87



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
32 

 

Regulatory requirement
3
  Discussion  RAG 

score 
Mitigation/ Recommendation 

Regulation 16 - Information as to adoption of plan or programme 

16.-(1) As soon as reasonably practicable after 
the adoption of a plan or programme for which 
an environmental assessment has been carried 
out under these Regulations, the responsible 
authority shall 

(4) The particulars referred to in paragraphs 
(1)(b)(iii) and (3)(c)(iii) are - 

(a) how environmental considerations have 
been integrated into the plan or programme;  

(b) how the environmental report has been 
taken into account;  

(c) how opinions expressed in response to- 
(i) the invitation referred to in regulation 
13(2)(d); (ii) action taken by the responsible 
authority in accordance with regulation 13(4), 
have been taken into account;  

(d) how the results of any consultations 
entered into under regulation 14(4) have 
been taken into account;  

(e) the reasons for choosing the plan or 
programme as adopted, in the light of the 
other reasonable alternatives dealt with; and  

(f) the measures that are to be taken to 
monitor the significant environmental effects 
of the implementation of the plan or 
programme. 

This is not required until adoption of the Local Plan; however, it is noted 
that the consultation responses received and how they have been taken 
into account are presented in Appendix 7 of the Regulation SA Report.   

N/A N/A 

Schedule 2 of the regulations lists the information to be provided within the SA Report 

1. An outline of the contents, main objectives of 
the plan or programme, and relationship with 
other relevant plans and programmes; 

The purpose and content of the Local Plan is provided in Section 1.2; 
however, it does not set out the objectives for the Local Plan.  This is 
important as the SEA Regulations states in Regulation 12 (2) that the 
report shall identify, describe and evaluate the likely significant effects on 
the environment of reasonable alternatives taking into account the 
objectives and the geographical scope of the plan. 

 Include the Local Plan objectives within the SA 
Report and explain how they link to the 
development of reasonable alternatives. 

2. The relevant aspects of the current state of 
the environment and the likely evolution 

Baseline information, including current state of the environment, is set 
out in Section 4.3 and Annex B of the SA Report. 

 The introduction in Annex B to the SA report could 
more clearly explain that the scoping stage was 

P
age 88



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
33 

 

Regulatory requirement
3
  Discussion  RAG 

score 
Mitigation/ Recommendation 

thereof without implementation of the plan or 
programme; 

carried out in 2015 and that consultation with the 
statutory consultees was carried out.  It would also 
be helpful to know if the baseline information has 
been updated since then.  From a quick review of 
Annex B it is obvious that it has been updated as it 
refers to documents published in 2017. 

 

The requirement to set out the likely evolution of 
the baseline without the Local Plan appears to 
have been addressed in Section 4.4, Table 2.  
Suggest that it may be more appropriate to 
address this within Annex B; however, this is not a 
significant issue in terms of legal compliance. 

3. The environmental characteristics of areas 
likely to be significantly affected; 

The environmental characteristics of areas likely to be significantly 
affected are set out in Section 4.3 and Annex B of the SA Report. 

 N/A 

4. Any existing environmental problems which 
are relevant to the plan or programme 
including, in particular, those relating to any 
areas of a particular environmental 
importance, such as areas designated 
pursuant to Directives 79/409/EEC and 
92/43/EEC.; 

Existing environmental problems are set out in Section 4.2 and Annex B 
of the SA Report.  Annex B notes that there are no European designated 
sites within the District. 

 N/A 

5. The environmental protection, objectives, 
established at international, Community or 
national level, which are relevant to the plan 
or programme and the way those objectives 
and any environmental, considerations have 
been taken into account during its 
preparation; 

Relevant plans and programmes are set out in Section 4.2 and Annex A 
of the SA Report.  

 N/A 

6. The likely significant effects on the 
environment, including on issues such as 
biodiversity, population, human health, 
fauna, flora, soil, water, air, climatic factors, 
material assets, cultural heritage including 
architectural and archaeological heritage, 
landscape and the interrelationship between 
the above factors. (Footnote: These effects 

The appraisal method is presented in Chapter 4, Section 4.6.  It allows 
for the identification of the nature and significance of effects as well as 
their duration.   Secondary, cumulative and synergistic effects are 
identified throughout the report where necessary.  All the topics referred 
to in the SEA Directive and the topics you would expect to see 
considered through a SA are included.   

There are a number of concerns in relation to the objectivity of the 
appraisal and assumptions made for GCs and spatial strategy options. 

 Please refer to the recommendations set out in 
Chapter 5 of the this report. 

P
age 89



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
34 

 

Regulatory requirement
3
  Discussion  RAG 

score 
Mitigation/ Recommendation 

should include secondary, cumulative, 
synergistic, short, medium and long-term 
permanent and temporary, positive and 
negative effects); 

Please refer to the substantive review in Chapter 3 for further details. 

7. The measures envisaged to prevent, reduce 
and as fully as possible offset any significant 
adverse effects on the environment of 
implementing the plan or programme; 

Mitigation is suggested throughout the SA Report and Appendices where 
necessary.  

 N/A 

8. An outline of the reasons for selecting the 
alternatives dealt with, and a description of 
how the assessment was undertaken 
including any difficulties (such as technical 
deficiencies or lack of know-how) 
encountered in compiling the required 
information; 

Outline reasons are provided throughout the report and in particular 
within Appendix 6; however, despite this it is not always clear why and 
how alternatives were developed.  The assumptions made and 
difficulties are not always clearly set out.  Please refer to the substantive 
review in Chapter 3 for further details. 

 Please refer to Chapter 5 of the report and the 
suggestive recommendations arising from the 
substantive review. 

9. Description of measures envisaged 
concerning monitoring in accordance with 
Art. 10; 

Chapter 11 of the SA Report explains that there are some suggested 
monitoring indicators presented in Annex C and that the Adoption 
Statement will outline the most appropriate indicators to be monitored.  
This is considered sufficient at this stage to meet requirements.  

 N/A 

10. A non-technical summary of the information 
provided under the above headings 

While a separate NTS has been provided and contains the majority of 
information that is required, it appears to be missing information relating 
to reasonable alternatives.  The NTS only briefly explains how GCs were 
considered and provides a summary of the comparative appraisal of the 
options.  It does not explain how these informed the identification of 
reasonable spatial strategy options or set out the reasons for their 
selection/ rejection. 

 It takes 21 pages before the reader gets to the 
findings of the appraisal for the Draft Plan.  
Suggest the scoping sections are condensed and 
more space given to the explanation of alternatives 
for Policies SP2 and SP3, key findings and 
reasons for their selection/ rejection. 

  

P
age 90



Uttlesford Local Plan  
 

Independent Review of the Reg 19 SA Report  
  

 

 
Prepared for: Uttlesford District Council   
 

AECOM 
35 

 

 

 

  

 

aecom.com   

  

  

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Garden Community Strategic Growth Development Plan Documents
	4 Local Plan Statement of Community Involvement
	Enc. 1 Draft Statement of Community Involvement with track changes

	5 Review of Regulation 19 Sustainability Appraisal
	Enc. 1 Review of Regulation 19 Sustainability Appraisal


